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This document (the “‘Base Prospectus’) constitutes a base prospectus in respect of the Programme (as
defined below). Any Securities (as defined below) issued on or after the date of this Base Prospectus are
issued subject to the provisions herein. This Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purpose
of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC (the ‘‘Prospectus Directive’). The Issuers have also prepared a
registration document (the “Registration Document”’) for use in connection with the issue of Securities
under the Programme. Securities issued under the Programme by way of Registration Document shall be
documented in a Securities Note (the ““Securities Note”), and, if applicable, a Summary (the “Summary”).
The Registration Document and any Securities Note and Summary prepared in connection therewith do not
form part of this Base Prospectus.

Under the terms of the Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme (the ‘“‘Programme”), Merrill Lynch
S.A. (“MLSA”) may from time to time issue notes (‘Notes’’) or certificates (‘‘Certificates’’) and Merrill
Lynch International & Co. C.V. (“MLICo.” and, together with MLSA, the “Issuers” and each an
“Issuer”’) may from time to time issue Certificates or warrants (‘““Warrants” and, together with
Certificates, “W&C Securities””, and W&C Securities together with Notes, ““Securities”). Securities of any
kind may be issued including but not limited to Securities relating to a specified index or a basket of
indices (“‘Index Linked Securities™), a specified share or a basket of shares (‘‘Share Linked Securities’’), a
specified debt instrument or a basket of debt instruments (‘“‘Debt Linked Securities’’), a specified global
depositary receipt (“GDR”’) or American depositary receipt (‘‘ADR”’) or basket of GDRs and/or ADRs
(“GDR/ADR Linked Securities”), a specified currency or a basket of currencies (“FX Linked
Securities”), a specified commodity or commodity index or a basket of commodities and/or commodity
indices (‘“Commodity Linked Securities’”), a specified fund or basket of funds (“Fund Linked
Securities”), a specified inflation index or a basket of inflation indices (“Inflation Linked Securities”),
the credit of a specified entity or entities (‘“‘Credit Linked Securities’’) and, in the case of Warrants, a
specified share of a company listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) or a basket of such shares
(“‘Saudi Share Linked Warrants”) or any combination of the foregoing (and each such underlying asset or
basis of reference, a ‘“‘Reference Item’’). Securities may also bear interest (in the case of Notes) or pay
additional amounts (in the case of W&C Securities). Each issue of Notes will be issued on the terms set
out herein which are relevant to such Notes under ““Terms and Conditions of the Notes’ on pages 124 to
160 and the additional Terms and Conditions on pages 261 to 386 and pages 439 to 443 (the “Note
Conditions’’) and each issue of Warrants and Certificates will be issued on the terms set out herein which
are relevant to such W&C Securities under ““Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities’” on pages 201
to 259 and the additional Terms and Conditions on pages 261 to 337, pages 387 to 438 and pages 444 to
457 (the “W&C Conditions””) and, in each case, on such additional terms as will be set out in the
applicable Final Terms (the “Final Terms’’). The Securities, and any non-contractual obligations arising
out of them, will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law.

Bank of America Corporation (“BAC”) has, in a guarantee dated 22 June 2011 (the ‘“Guarantee’),
irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed the payment and non-cash delivery obligations in respect of
the Securities issued by each Issuer from time to time under the Programme on or after the date of this
Base Prospectus (see “Form of Guarantee” on pages 458 to 460). The Guarantee will be governed by,
and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

The maximum aggregate nominal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the
Programme and MLSA’s other structured products programmes will not exceed EUR 15,000,000,000 (or
its equivalent in other currencies), subject to increase as described herein.



Application has been made to the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the “CSSF”) in its
capacity as competent authority under the Luxembourg Act dated 10 July 2005 on prospectuses for
securities, to approve this Base Prospectus as a base prospectus. Application has also been made to the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be admitted to trading on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s regulated market is a regulated market for the
purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
for Securities issued under the Programme to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange’s alternative market — Euro MTF — and to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange. The Programme provides that Securities may be listed or admitted to trading, as the
case may be, on such further or other stock exchanges or markets as the relevant Issuer and the Dealer(s)
(as defined herein) may agree. The applicable Final Terms will specify whether or not the Securities are
to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and traded on the regulated market,
Euro MTF and/or any other stock exchanges. The relevant Issuer may also issue unlisted Securities
and/or Securities not admitted to trading on any market.

Any person (an ‘“Investor’) intending to acquire or acquiring any Securities from any person (an
“Offeror’’) should be aware that, in the context of an offer of Securities to the public as defined in the
Prospectus Directive, the relevant Issuer may be responsible to the Investor for this Base Prospectus only
if such Issuer is acting in association with that Offeror to make the offer to the Investor. Each Investor
should therefore verify with the Offeror whether or not the Offeror is acting in association with the
relevant Issuer. If the Offeror is not acting in association with the such Issuer, the Investor should check
with the Offeror whether anyone is responsible for this Base Prospectus for the purposes of Article 6 of
the Prospectus Directive as implemented by the national legislation of each European Economic Area
Member State in the context of the offer to the public, and, if so, who that person is. If the Investor is in
any doubt about whether it can rely on this Base Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its contents it
should take legal advice.

In respect of Securities to be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange AG (the “SIX Swiss Exchange’’), the
relevant Term Sheet (as defined below), if any, and/or Final Terms in respect of such Securities will
specify that such Securities will be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and application for trading of such
Securities on Scoach Switzerland or any successor thereto (‘““Scoach Switzerland’’) has been or will be
made. In the case of a listing of Securities on the SIX Swiss Exchange, this Base Prospectus will constitute
the base prospectus for the SIX Swiss Exchange registered issuance programme pursuant to Section 21 of
the Additional Rules for the Listing of Derivatives of the SIX Swiss Exchange and may be supplemented
from time to time by filing an appropriate supplement (each a “Supplement’”) with the SIX Swiss
Exchange modifying, updating or amending the information contained herein. In respect of Securities to
be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, this Base Prospectus, together with any Supplement and the
applicable Final Terms, will constitute the listing prospectus pursuant to the Listing Rules of the
SIX Swiss Exchange.

In respect of Securities which will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange or which will be listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange only after the commencement of trading, such Issuer may prepare a term sheet (the
“Term Sheet”) setting forth, on a preliminary basis, certain information with respect to such Securities,
the date of issue, the issue price, the redemption amount, the redemption date, the notional amount, the
capital protection, the coupon, the strike price, the knock-in price (each as applicable) and any additional
information required by applicable law or SIX Swiss Exchange regulations, provided that the relevant
Issuer reserves the right to set forth any and all information which may be required to be disclosed in a
simplified prospectus pursuant to Art. 5 of the Swiss Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes and
any implementing ordinance or other act or regulation or self-regulation in the Final Terms or a separate
document (the ““‘Simplified Prospectus’). Any Term Sheet prepared shall be subject to the Final Terms
and Simplified Prospectus, if any, for the relevant Securities.

The Securities, the Guarantee and, in certain cases, the Entitlement (as defined herein) (if any) relating to
the Securities have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the ““Securities Act’’), or under any U.S. state securities laws, and the Securities may not be offered, sold,
transferred, pledged, delivered, exercised or redeemed, directly or indirectly, at any time within the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, any United States Person (as defined herein) except
pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the
Securities Act. In addition, certain issues of Securities, including all issues of Notes and Certificates, and
the Entitlements (if any) relating to the Securities may not at any time be offered, sold or delivered in the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, United States Persons, nor may any United States
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Persons at any time trade or maintain a position in such Securities. Neither Issuer has registered as an
investment company pursuant to the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the
“1940 Act”) and the rules thereunder. MLICo. may offer and sell Warrants of certain issues within the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, United States Persons, if such persons are reasonably
believed by MLICo. to be qualified institutional buyers (each a “QIB”’) as defined in Rule 144A under
the Securities Act (“Rule 144A”’) who are also each a qualified purchaser (each a “QP’’) within the
meaning of Section 3(c)(7) and as defined in Section 2(a)(51) of the 1940 Act and the rules thereunder
and who have executed an Investor Representation Letter (as defined herein) prior to acquiring any
interest in the Warrants, such Warrants being referred to in this Base Prospectus as “‘Rule 144A
Warrants”. Each purchaser of Rule 144A Warrants being offered within the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, a United States Person is hereby notified that the offer and sale of such Rule
144 A Warrants is being made in reliance upon an exemption from the securities registration requirements
of the Securities Act and the investment company registration requirements of the 1940 Act. In certain
circumstances, exercise of Securities will be conditional upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial
ownership or in the case of certain Series of Warrants that the holder (and any person on whose behalf
the holder is acting) is a QIB and a QP. See “Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities” on pages 201
to 259 and ‘“Additional Terms and Conditions for Rule 144A Warrants’ on pages 444 to 451. Investors in
the Securities will be deemed to have made or be required to make certain representations and
warranties in connection with purchasing the Securities. See ‘“Notice to Purchasers and Holders of
Securities and Transfer Restrictions” on pages 465 to 475. Warrants sold in the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, United States Persons who are QIBs and also QPs will be cash-settled Warrants
only and will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, be sold through Merrill Lynch,
Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated or one of its affiliates, which in each case is a registered broker
dealer in the United States.

Unless otherwise indicated, as used in this Base Prospectus, “United States Person” means a person
which is a “U.S. person” as defined by Regulation S under the Securities Act or a ““United States person”
as defined in Section 7701(a)(30) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the “Code”) and in U.S. Treasury regulations.

For a description of certain further restrictions on offers and sales of the Securities and on the distribution
of this Base Prospectus, see “Offering and Sale’” on pages 507 to 519.

Each issue of Securities will be issued in the form set out in “Form of the Securities” on pages 85 to 91.

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant
Securities and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant
Securities as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Securities
involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the
purchase price of their Securities. See “Risk Factors’ on pages 29 to 79.

The credit ratings of BAC referred to in this Base Prospectus have been issued by Standard & Poor’s
Rating Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., and
Fitch, Inc., none of which is established in the European Union.

The rating of a certain series of Securities to be issued under the Programme may be specified in the
applicable Final Terms. Whether or not each credit rating applied for in relation to the relevant series of
Securities will be issued by a credit rating agency established in the European Union and registered under
Regulation (EU) No. 1060/2009 (as amended by Regulation (EU) No. 513/2011 the “CRA Regulation’’)
will be disclosed in the Final Terms. In general, European regulated investors are restricted from using a
rating for regulatory purposes if such rating is not issued by a credit rating agency established in the
European Union and registered under the CRA Regulation unless the rating is provided by a credit
rating agency operating in the European Union before 7 June 2010 which has submitted an application
for registration in accordance with the CRA Regulation and such registration is not refused.

BofA MERRILL LYNCH
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IMPORTANT NOTICES

This Base Prospectus has been approved by the CSSF as a Base Prospectus, and constitutes two Base
Prospectuses for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive. This Base Prospectus is not a
prospectus for purposes of Section 12(a)(2) or any other provision of or rule under the Securities Act.

MLSA accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus, excluding the
information set forth under ‘“Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V.” on pages 480 to 481, the
information set forth under “Selected Financial Data of Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V.” on
pages 482 to 483, the information set forth under “Bank of America Corporation’” on pages 484 to 485,
the information set forth under “Selected Financial Data of Bank of America Corporation” on page 486
to 487, information incorporated by reference in respect of MLICo. and BAC, and statements in respect
of MLICo. and BAC under “General Information” on pages 520 to 522 (together, the “MLSA Base
Prospectus”), and to the best of the knowledge of MLSA (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that
such is the case), the information contained in the MLSA Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts
and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

MLICo. accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus, excluding the
information set forth under ‘“Merrill Lynch S.A.” on pages 476 to 477, the information set forth under
“Selected Financial Data of Merrill Lynch S.A.” on pages 478 to 479, the information set forth under
“Bank of America Corporation” on pages 484 to 485, the information set forth under ‘““Selected Financial
Data of Bank of America Corporation” on pages 486 to 487, the information set forth under “Form of
Final Terms of the Notes” on pages 92 to 123, the information set forth under “Terms and Conditions of
the Notes” on pages 124 to 160, information incorporated by reference in respect of MLSA and BAC,
and statements in respect of MLSA and BAC under ‘“General Information” on pages 520 to 522
(together, the “MLICo. Base Prospectus”), and to the best of the knowledge of MLICo. (having taken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in the MLICo. Base
Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information.

BAC accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus, excluding the
information set forth under “Merrill Lynch S.A.” on pages 476 to 477, the information set forth under
“Selected Financial Data of Merrill Lynch S.A.” on pages 478 to 479, the information set forth under
“Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V.” on pages 480 to 481, the information set forth under “Selected
Financial Data of Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V.” on pages 482 to 483, information incorporated
by reference in respect of MLSA and MLICo. and statements in respect of MLSA and MLICo. under
“General Information” on pages 520 to 522 (together, the “BAC Information”), and to the best of the
knowledge of BAC (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information
contained in the BAC Information is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information.

The previous three paragraphs should be read in conjunction with the third paragraph on the second page
of this Base Prospectus.

In relation to any Securities that are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, MLSA confirms that the
information contained in the MLSA Base Prospectus is, to the best of MLSA’s knowledge, correct, and
that no material facts or circumstances have been omitted from the MLSA Base Prospectus.

In relation to any Securities that are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, MLICo. confirms that the
information contained in the MLICo. Base Prospectus is, to the best of MLICo.’s knowledge, correct, and
that no material facts or circumstances have been omitted from the MLICo. Base Prospectus.

In relation to any Securities that are listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, BAC confirms that the BAC
Information is, to the best of BAC’s knowledge, correct, and that no material facts or circumstances have
been omitted from the BAC Information.

Subject as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the only persons authorised to use this Base
Prospectus in connection with an offer of Securities are the persons named in the applicable Final Terms
as the relevant Issuer or the relevant Dealer(s) or Manager(s) and the persons named in or identifiable
following the applicable Final Terms as the Financial Intermediaries, as the case may be.

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO ACQUIRE OR ACQUIRING ANY SECURITIES FROM AN
OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF THE SECURITIES TO AN INVESTOR
BY AN OFFEROR WILL BE MADE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY TERMS AND OTHER
ARRANGEMENTS IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR
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INCLUDING AS TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS AND SETTLEMENT ARRANGEMENTS.
NEITHER THE RELEVANT ISSUER NOR BAC WILL BE A PARTY TO ANY SUCH
ARRANGEMENTS WITH INVESTORS (OTHER THAN THE MANAGER(S) OR DEALER(S)
(AS THE CASE MAY BE)), IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE
SECURITIES AND, ACCORDINGLY, THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL TERMS
WILL NOT CONTAIN SUCH INFORMATION. THE INVESTOR MUST LOOK TO THE
OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH OFFER FOR THE PROVISION OF SUCH
INFORMATION. NEITHER THE RELEVANT ISSUER NOR BAC HAS ANY
RESPONSIBILITY TO AN INVESTOR IN RESPECT OF SUCH INFORMATION.

Information contained in this Base Prospectus which is sourced from a third party has been accurately
reproduced and, as far as each Issuer and BAC is aware and is able to ascertain from information
published by the relevant third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced
information inaccurate or misleading. Each Issuer has also identified the source(s) of such information.

The applicable Final Terms (if applicable) will specify the nature of the responsibility taken by the
relevant Issuer and BAC for the information relating to the Reference Item to which the relevant
Securities relate and which is contained in such Final Terms.

NOTICE TO NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS

NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR AN
APPLICATION FOR A LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B
OF THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT A SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY
REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE
OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER CHAPTER
421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER ANY SUCH
FACT NOR THE FACT THAT AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION IS
AVAILABLE FOR A SECURITY OR A TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE
SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY UPON THE MERITS OR
QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO,
ANY PERSON, SECURITY OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE,
OR CAUSE TO BE MADE, TO ANY PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER,
CUSTOMER OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT WITH
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

No person is or has been authorised by MLSA, MLICo., BAC or Merrill Lynch International (‘“MLI’’)*
to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent with this Base
Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme and, if given or made,
such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by MLSA,
MLICo., BAC, MLI or any other Dealer of an issue of Securities. This Base Prospectus does not
constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction
in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such
offer or solicitation and no action is being taken to permit an offering of the Securities or the distribution
of this Base Prospectus in any jurisdiction where any such action is required.

This Base Prospectus is to be read and construed in conjunction with all documents which are deemed to
be incorporated herein by reference (see “Documents Incorporated by Reference” on pages 11 to 16).
This Base Prospectus shall be read and construed on the basis that such documents are incorporated in
and form part of this Base Prospectus.

The Securities of each issue may be sold by the relevant Issuer and/or any Dealer at such time and at such
prices as the relevant Issuer and/or the Dealer(s) may select. There is no obligation upon the relevant
Issuer or any Dealer to sell all of the Securities of any issue. The Securities of any issue may be offered or
sold from time to time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise at
prevailing market prices or in negotiated transactions, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer.

*The marketing name of MLI is BofA Merrill Lynch as set out on page 3.
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Subject as provided in the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes’” and the “Terms and Conditions of the
W&C Securities”, as applicable, each Issuer shall have complete discretion as to what type of Securities it
issues and when.

Apart from the Issuers and BAC, no other party has independently verified the information contained
herein. Accordingly, no representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no
responsibility or liability is accepted by any Dealer as to the accuracy or completeness of the information
contained in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by MLSA, MLICo. and/or BAC. No
Dealer accepts any liability in relation to the information contained or incorporated by reference in this
Base Prospectus or any other information provided by MLSA, MLICo. and/or BAC in connection with
the Programme.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or
any Securities (a) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (b) should be
considered as a recommendation by MLSA, MLICo., BAC or any Dealer that any recipient of this Base
Prospectus or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Securities should
purchase any Securities. Each investor contemplating purchasing any Securities should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness, of the relevant Issuer and BAC. Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme or any issue of Securities constitutes an offer or
an invitation by or on behalf of MLSA, MLICo., BAC or any Dealer or any other person to subscribe for
or to purchase any Securities.

Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Securities shall in any
circumstances imply that the information contained herein concerning MLSA, MLICo. and BAC is
correct at any time subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection
with the Programme is correct as of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing
the same. No Dealer undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of MLSA, MLICo. and/or
BAC during the life of the Programme or to advise any investor in the Securities of any information
coming to their attention.

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
Securities in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation in
such jurisdiction. The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Securities may be
restricted by law in certain jurisdictions. None of MLSA, MLICo., BAC or any Dealer represents that
this Base Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Securities may be lawfully offered, in
compliance with any applicable registration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant to an
exemption available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or
offer. In particular, unless specifically indicated to the contrary in the applicable Final Terms, no action
has been taken by MLSA, MLICo., BAC or any Dealer which is intended to permit a public offering of
any Securities or distribution of this Base Prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is
required. Accordingly, no Securities may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Base
Prospectus nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any
jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and
regulations. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Securities may come must inform
themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and the
offering and sale of Securities. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base
Prospectus and the offer or sale of Securities in the United States, the European Economic Area
(including Luxembourg, the United Kingdom, France, Italy and The Netherlands), Argentina, Australia,
China, Curacao, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Israel, Japan, Malaysia, Panama, Philippines, Russia, Singapore,
Switzerland, Taiwan and Uruguay, and such other restrictions as may be required in connection with the
offering and sale of a particular series of Securities (see “Offering and Sale” on pages 507 to 519). In
particular, the Securities, the Guarantee and, in certain cases, the Entitlement to be delivered upon
exercise of the Securities, have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act.

This Base Prospectus has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (b) below
may apply, any offer of Securities in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has
implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a “Relevant Member State”’) will be made pursuant to an
exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from the
requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Securities. Accordingly any person making or intending
to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Securities which are the subject of an offering
contemplated in this Base Prospectus as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of those



Important Notices

Securities may only do so (a) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the relevant Issuer or any
Dealer to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a
prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer, or
(b) if a prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member
State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent
authority in that Relevant Member State, and (in either case) published, all in accordance with the
Prospectus Directive, provided that, any such prospectus has subsequently been completed by final terms
which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive in
that Relevant Member State, and such offer is made in the period beginning and ending on the dates
specified for such purpose in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable. Except to the extent
sub-paragraph (b) above may apply, neither the relevant Issuer nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do
they authorise, the making of any offer of Securities in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the
relevant Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

Securities in bearer form are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may not be offered, sold or
delivered within the United States or its possessions or to United States persons, except in certain
transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Unless otherwise noted, as used in this Base Prospectus,
“United States’’ means the United States of America (including the States and District of Columbia) and
its possessions. For the purposes of this paragraph, ‘“United States person’’ has the meaning given to it by
the Code and the U.S. Treasury regulations thereunder, including U.S. Treasury Regulation Section
1.163-5(¢)(2) (i) (D).

No Securities, other than Rule 144A Warrants, or any interests therein, may at any time be offered, sold,
resold, pledged, assigned, delivered, or otherwise transferred, exercised or redeemed directly or
indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, United States Persons and any offer,
sale, resale, pledge, assignment, delivery or other transfer, exercise or redemption made, directly or
indirectly, within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a United States Person will not
be recognised.

The Securities and the Guarantee have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC’’) or any other securities commission or other regulatory authority
in the United States, nor have the foregoing authorities reviewed or passed upon the accuracy or
adequacy of this Base Prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United
States. The Securities and the Guarantee have not been approved by the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission under the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended.

This Base Prospectus is being submitted on a confidential basis in the United States to a limited number
of QIBs who are also QPs for informational use solely in connection with the consideration of the
purchase of the Warrants. It may not be copied or reproduced in whole or in part nor may it be
distributed or any of its contents disclosed to anyone other than the prospective investors to whom it is
originally submitted.

Each purchaser or holder of interests in the Warrants will be deemed, by its acceptance or purchase of
any such Warrants, to have made, or will be required to make, certain representations and agreements as
set out in “Notice to Purchasers and Holders of Securities and Transfer Restrictions” and ‘“Offering and
Sale”.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, each holder and beneficial owner of the
Securities (and each employee, representative, or other agent of each holder and beneficial owner of the
Securities) may disclose to any and all persons, without limitation of any kind, the tax treatment and tax
structure of the transactions described herein and all materials of any kind that are provided to the holder
or beneficial owner of the Securities relating to such tax treatment and tax structure (as such terms are
defined in U.S. Treasury Regulation Section 1.6011-4). This authorisation of tax disclosure is retroactively
effective to the commencement of discussions with holders or beneficial owners of the Securities
regarding the transactions contemplated herein.

Neither MLSA nor MLICo. has investigated, and neither has or may have access to information that
would permit it to ascertain, whether any company which has issued equity, debt or other instruments to
which any Securities relate is for U.S. tax purposes a passive foreign investment company, a controlled
foreign corporation, a publicly-traded partnership or other type of pass-through entity. Prospective
investors in any Securities that are U.S. taxpayers should consult their own advisers concerning U.S. tax
considerations relevant to an investment in such Securities.
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In this Base Prospectus, references to “U.S.$”, “$” and “U.S. dollars” are to United States Dollars,
references to ‘“‘euro” and “€” are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European
economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended
by the Treaty on European Union, as amended by the Treaty of Amsterdam and references to “CNY”
are to Chinese Renminbi, the lawful currency of the People’s Republic of China (including any lawful
successor to the CNY).

In connection with the issue of any Series of Notes, the Dealer or Dealers (if any) named as the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the applicable Final
Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market price of the Notes
at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurance that the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager) will undertake stabilisation
action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate public disclosure of the
terms of the offer of the relevant Series of Notes is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it
must end no later than the earlier of 30 calendar days after the issue date of the relevant Series of Notes
and 60 calendar days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Series of Notes. Any stabilisation
action or over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on
behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.
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Available Information

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

BAC will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Base Prospectus has been
delivered, upon the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents relating
to BAC incorporated herein by reference. Written requests for such documents should be directed to:
Bank of America Corporation, 100 North Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina 28255-0065, Attention:
Fixed Income Investor Relations, or fixedincomeir@bankofamerica.com. Telephone requests may be
directed to either +1-866-607-1234 (toll free) or +1-212-449-6795. BAC’s filings with the SEC are
available through (1) the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov, or the SEC’s Public Reference Room,
100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, and (2) BAC’s website at
www.bankofamerica.com. In addition, all documents incorporated herein by reference will be available
for viewing on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu) or at the specified offices
of the Principal Security Agent. References to web addresses in this Base Prospectus are included as
inactive textual references only. Except as specifically incorporated by reference into this Base
Prospectus, information on these websites is not part of this Base Prospectus.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents, which have previously been published and have been filed with the CSSF shall
be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this Base Prospectus:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(h)

(i)

BAC’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 December 2010 (the “BAC 2010
Annual Report”);

BAC’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended 31 March 2011 (the “BAC 31 March
2011 Quarterly Report”);

BAC’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed on 3 January 2011 (the “BAC 3 January 2011 Form
8-K”), 21 January 2011 (the “BAC 21 January 2011 Form 8-K’’), 31 January 2011 (the “BAC
31 January 2011 Form 8-K”’), 16 March 2011 (the “BAC 16 March 2011 Form 8-K*), 17 March 2011
(the “BAC 17 March 2011 Form 8-K”’), 23 March 2011 (the “BAC 23 March 2011 Form 8-K”’),
15 April 2011 (two filings) (respectively the “First BAC 15 April 2011 Form 8-K” and the “Second
BAC 15 April 2011 Form 8-K”’), 2 May 2011 (the “BAC 2 May 2011 Form 8-K”), 11 May 2011 (the
“BAC 11 May 2011 Form 8-K”) and 13 June 2011 (the “BAC 13 June 2011 Form 8-K” and,
together with the BAC 3 January 2011 Form 8-K, the BAC 21 January 2011 Form 8-K, the BAC
31 January 2011 Form 8-K, the BAC 16 March 2011 Form 8-K, the BAC 17 March 2011 Form 8-K,
the BAC 23 March 2011 Form 8-K, the First BAC 15 April 2011 Form 8-K, the Second BAC
15 April 2011 Form 8-K, the BAC 2 May 2011 Form 8-K and the BAC 11 May 2011 Form 8-K, the
“BAC Forms 8-K”’) (other than, with respect to these reports, information that is furnished but
deemed not to have been filed under the rules of the SEC);

MLSA’s audited financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the
auditor’s report dated 28 April 2010 thereon (the “MLSA 2009 Accounts’) and as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and the auditor’s report dated 19 April 2011 thereon (the “MLSA
2010 Accounts”);

MLICo.’s audited financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2009 and the
auditor’s report dated 18 June 2010 thereon (the “MLICo. 2009 Accounts’’) and as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2010 and the auditor’s report dated 28 April 2011 thereon (the “MLICo.
2010 Accounts”);

for the purpose of any issue of Notes under the Programme which are to be consolidated and form a
single series with an existing tranche or series of Notes issued on or after 15 September 2009 or for
the purpose of any other Series of Notes in respect of which the applicable Final Terms provides
that the 2009 Notes Conditions apply, the form of final terms of the Notes (the <2009 Note Final
Terms”’) on pages 74 to 112 of the base prospectus of the Issuers dated 15 September 2009 (the
“2009 Base Prospectus”), the terms and conditions of the Notes on pages 113 to 140 of the 2009
Base Prospectus (the “2009 Note Conditions”), the annexes on pages 277 to 347 of the 2009 Base
Prospectus (the “2009 Annexes””) and the form of guarantee on pages 348 to 349 of the 2009 Base
Prospectus (the <2009 Form of Guarantee”);

for the purpose of any issue of W&C Securities under the Programme which are to be consolidated
and form a single series with an existing tranche or series of W&C Securities issued on or after
15 September 2009 or for the purpose of any other Series of W&C Securities in respect of which the
applicable Final Terms provides that the 2009 W& C Conditions apply, the form of final terms of the
W&C Securities (the “2009 W&C Final Terms”) on pages 142 to 179 of the 2009 Base Prospectus,
the terms and conditions of the W&C Securities on pages 180 to 225 of the 2009 Base Prospectus
(the “2009 W&C Conditions”’), the 2009 Annexes and the 2009 Form of Guarantee;

for the purpose of any issue of Notes under the Programme which are to be consolidated and form a
single series with an existing tranche or series of Notes issued on or after 22 June 2010 or for the
purpose of any other Series of Notes in respect of which the applicable Final Terms provides that
the 2010 Notes Conditions apply, the form of final terms of the Notes (the “2010 Note Final
Terms”) on pages 74 to 116 of the base prospectus of the Issuers dated 22 June 2010 (the “2010 Base
Prospectus’), the terms and conditions of the Notes on pages 117 to 145 of the 2010 Base
Prospectus (the ‘2010 Note Conditions”), the annexes on pages 238 to 367 of the 2010 Base
Prospectus (the <2010 Annexes’”) and the form of guarantee on pages 376 to 378 of the 2010 Base
Prospectus (the “2010 Form of Guarantee’); and

for the purpose of any issue of W&C Securities under the Programme which are to be consolidated
and form a single series with an existing tranche or series of W&C Securities issued on or after

11



Documents Incorporated by Reference

22 June 2010 or for the purpose of any other Series of W&C Securities in respect of which the
applicable Final Terms provides that the 2010 W& C Conditions apply, the form of final terms of the
W&C Securities (the <2010 W&C Final Terms’’) on pages 147 to 184 of the 2010 Base Prospectus,
the terms and conditions of the W&C Securities on pages 185 to 236 of the 2010 Base Prospectus
(the <2010 W&C Conditions’’), the 2010 Annexes and the 2010 Form of Guarantee.

The historical financial information of BAC on a consolidated basis for the two years ended 31 December
2010 is contained in the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

To the extent that this Base Prospectus is used in connection with an issue or offering of Securities under
the Programme in circumstances where the Prospectus Directive does not apply and where the Securities
are not to be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange, the following documents, which may be produced or
issued from time to time after the date hereof, shall upon publication be deemed to form part of this Base
Prospectus. For the avoidance of doubt, the following documents will not form part of this Base
Prospectus for the purpose of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive or the Listing Rules of the SIX Swiss
Exchange:

(i)

(i)

BAC’s annual report on Form 10-K and proxy statements of BAC filed with the SEC after the date
of this Base Prospectus; and

any other reports filed by BAC with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the
United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act’) and the rules
and regulations thereunder subsequent to the date of the financial statements included in the BAC
2010 Annual Report including, without limitation, any quarterly report on Form 10-Q not
incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

Documents Incorporated by Reference Cross-Reference List
BAC 2010 Annual Report

Part I

Item 1. Business

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Item 2. Properties

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Item 4. Removed and Reserved
Executive Officers of the Registrant

Part II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Statement of Income

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Litigation and Regulatory Matters

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Item 9B. Other Information

Part III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director
Independence

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statements Schedules (including all listed)
Signatures

Exhibit 3(b). Amended and Restated Bylaws of registrant as of 24 February 2011
Exhibit 12. Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Fixed
Charges and Preferred Dividends

Exhibit 21. List of Subsidiaries

Exhibit 23. Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Exhibit 24(b). Corporate Resolution
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Pages 1 to 7
Pages 8 to 19
Page 19
Page 19
Page 20
Page 20
Page 20

Page 21
Page 21

Pages 22 to 134

Page 135

Page 135 to 240

Page 136

Page 137

Pages 138 to 139
Page 140

Page 141

Pages 142 to 240
Pages 196 to 205

Page 241
Pages 241 to 242
Page 243

Page 244
Page 244

Page 244

Page 245
Page 245

Page 246
Pages 247 to 248
Pages 434 to 454*

Page 580%*
Pages 581 to 619*
Page 620*
Pages 624 to 625*



Documents Incorporated by Reference

BAC 31 March 2011 Quarterly Report

Part I. Financial Information Pages 119 to 124
Item 1. Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Income for the Three Months Ended March 31, 2011

and 2010 Page 119
Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 Page 120
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity for the Three Months

Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 Page 122
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Three Months Ended March 31,

2011 and 2010 Page 123
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Page 124
Item 2. Management’s Discussions and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations Pages 3 to 117
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk Page 118
Item 4. Controls and Procedures Page 118
Part II. Other Information Pages 198 to 201
Item 1. Legal Proceedings Page 198
Item 1A. Risk Factors Page 198
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds Page 198
Item 6. Exhibits Page 199
Signatures Page 200
Index to Exhibits Page 201
Exhibit 10(a) — Form of Directors’ Stock Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement

for Non-U.S. Director Pages 215 to 218%*
Exhibit 12 — Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred Dividends Page 219%*
BAC 3 January 2011 Form 8-K

Item 2.06 Material Impairments Page 2
Item 8.01 Other Events Page 2
Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits Page 2
Signatures Page 3
Exhibit Index Page 4
Exhibit 99.1 — Press release dated January 3, 2011 of BAC Pages 5 to 8*
BAC 21 January 2011 Form 8-K

Item 2.02. Results of Operations and Financial Condition Page 3*
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits (all listed save that Exhibit 99.3 shall

not be incorporated by reference herein) Page 3*
Signatures Page 4%
Index to Exhibits (all listed save that Exhibit 99.3 shall not be incorporated by

reference herein) Page 5*
Exhibit 99.1 — Press release dated 21 January 2011 with respect to BAC'’s financial

results for the fourth quarter and year ended 31 December 2010 Pages 6 to 33*
Exhibit 99.2 — Select earnings and slides for use on 21 January 2011 with respect to

BAC’s financial results for the fourth quarter and year ended 31 December 2010 Pages 34 to 41*

BAC 31 January 2011 Form 8-K
Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers: Election of Directors:

Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory Arrangements of Certain Officers Pages 4 to 5*
Item 8.01 Other Events Page 5%
Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits Page 6*
Signatures Page 7%
Index to Exhibits Page 8*
Exhibit 10.1 — Summary of Material Terms of Cash-Settled Stock Units (“CSU”)

and Performance Contingent Restricted Stock Units (““PRSU”) Pages 9 to 10*
Exhibit 10.2 — Form of CSU Award Agreement Pages 11 to 17*
Exhibit 10.3 Form of PRSU Award Agreement Pages 18 to 27*
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BAC 16 March 2011 Form 8-K

Item 5.02 Departure of Directors of Certain Officers; Election of Directors;
Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory Arrangements of Certain
Officers

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

Signatures

Exhibit Index

Exhibit 99.1 — Press Release dated March 16, 2011 of BAC

BAC 17 March 2011 Form 8-K

Item 8.01 Other Events

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

Signatures

Index to Exhibits

Exhibit 5.1 — Opinion of McGuireWoods LLP as to the legality of the Series L
Medium-Term Notes

BAC 23 March 2011 Form 8-K
Item 8.01 Other Events
Signatures

First BAC 15 April 2011 Form 8-K

Item 2.02 Results of Operations and Financial Condition

Item 8.01 Other Events

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits (all listed save that Exhibit 99.3 shall
not be incorporated by reference herein)

Signatures

Index to Exhibits (all listed save that Exhibit 99.3 shall not be incorporated by
reference herein)

Exhibit 99.1 — Press release dated 15 April 2011 with respect to BAC’s financial
results for the first quarter ended 31 March 2011

Exhibit 99.2 — Select earnings related slides for use on 15 April 2011 with respect
to BAC’s financial results for the first quarter ended 31 March 2011

Exhibit 99.4 — Press release dated 15 April 2011 of BAC with respect to its
agreement with Assured Guaranty Ltd

Second BAC 15 April 2011 Form 8-K
Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors;

Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory Arrangements of Certain Officers

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits
Signatures

Index to Exhibits

Exhibit 99.1 — Press release dated 15 April 2011

BAC 2 May 2011 Form 8-K

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits

Signatures

Exhibit Index

Exhibit 5.1 — Opinion of McGuireWoods LLP as to the legality of the Series L
Medium-Term Notes

BAC 11 May 2011 Form 8-K

Item 5.07 Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Signatures
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Page 2
Page 2
Page 3
Page 4
Pages 1 to 2

Page 3*
Page 3*
Page 5*
Page 6*

Pages 7 to 8*

Page 3%
Page 4%

Page 3*
Page 3%

Page 4%
Page 5*

Page 6*
Pages 7 to 30%*
Pages 31 to 34*

Pages 111 to 112*

Page 3*
Page 3%
Page 4%
Page 5%
Pages 6 to 8*

Page 3*
Page 4%
Page 5*

Pages 6 to 9*

Pages 3 to 4%*
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BAC 13 June 2011 Form 8-K

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits
Signatures

Exhibit Index

Exhibit 5.1 — Opinion of McGuireWoods LLP as to the legality of the Notes

Exhibit 23.1 — Consent of McGuireWoods LLP

MLSA 2009 Accounts
Independent Auditor’s Report
Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss Account
Notes to the Accounts
Subscribed Capital

Legal Reserve

Management Responsibility Statement of the Board of Directors

Management Report of the Board of Directors

MLSA 2010 Accounts

Management Responsibility Statement of the Board of Directors

Management Report of the Board of Directors
Audit Report

Annual Accounts

Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss Account

Notes to the Accounts

MLICo. 2009 Accounts

General Partner’s Annual Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the General Partner
Profit and Loss Account

Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

MLICo. 2010 Accounts

General Partner’s Annual Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the General Partner
Profit and Loss Account

Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Statement

Note to the Financial Statements

2009 Base Prospectus
2009 Note Final Terms
2009 Note Conditions
2009 W&C Final Terms
2009 W&C Conditions
2009 Form of Guarantee
2009 Annexes

2010 Base Prospectus
2010 Note Final Terms
2010 Note Conditions
2010 W&C Final Terms
2010 W& C Conditions
2010 Form of Guarantee
2010 Annexes

*These page numbers are references to the PDF pages included in the relevant report.
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Any information not listed in the cross reference list but included in the documents incorporated by
reference is given for information purposes only.

For the purposes of Article 28.4 of Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004, any non-incorporated
parts of a document referred to herein are either deemed not relevant for an investor or are otherwise
covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

Following publication of this Base Prospectus a supplement may be prepared by the Issuers and BAC and
approved by the CSSF in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements contained in
any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by reference therein) shall, to the
extent applicable (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify or supersede
statements contained in this Base Prospectus or in a document which is incorporated by reference in this
Base Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so modified or superseded,
constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

Investors in the Securities shall be deemed to have notice of all information contained in the documents
incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus, as if all such information were included in this Base
Prospectus. Investors who have not previously reviewed such information should do so in connection with
their purchase of Securities. Copies of all such documents incorporated by reference will be available for
inspection without charge at the office of the Principal Paying Agent in London.

BAC will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Base Prospectus has been
delivered, upon the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents listed in
paragraphs (a) to (c) above. Written requests for such documents should be directed to: Bank of America
Corporation, Bank of America Corporate Center, 100 North Tryon Street, Charlotte, North Carolina
28255-00065, Attention: Fixed Income Investor Relations, or fixedincomeir@bankofamerica.com.
Telephone requests may be directed to either +1-866-607-1234 (toll free) or +1-212-449-6795. BAC’s
filings with the SEC are available through (1) the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov, or the SEC’s Public
Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, and (2) BAC’s website at
www.bankofamerica.com. Copies of all of the documents incorporated by reference into this Base
Prospectus will be available on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange website (www.bourse.lu). References to
web addresses in this Base Prospectus are included as inactive textual references only. Except as
specifically incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus, information on these websites is not part
of this Base Prospectus.

The Issuers and BAC will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy
relating to information included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of
any Securities, prepare a supplement to this Base Prospectus or publish a new Base Prospectus for use in
connection with any subsequent issue of Securities.
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Summary of the Programme

SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Base Prospectus. Any decision to invest in any
Securities should be based on a consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole, including the documents
incorporated by reference. Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus
Directive in each Member State of the European Economic Area, no civil liability will attach to the
Issuers or BAC in any such Member State in respect of this summary, including any translation thereof,
unless it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Base
Prospectus. Where a claim relating to information contained in this Base Prospectus is brought before a
court in a Member State of the European Economic Area, the plaintiff may, under the national
legislation of the Member State where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating
this Base Prospectus before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Words and expressions defined in the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes” or in the “Terms and
Conditions of the W&C Securities”, as applicable, and in the remainder of this Base Prospectus shall have
the same meanings in this summary. MLSA may issue Notes and Certificates and MLICo. may issue
Warrants and Certificates. Notes, Certificates and Warrants are together referred to as ““Securities”.

Issuers: Merrill Lynch S.A. (“MLSA”)
Merrill Lynch International & Co. C.V. (“MLICo.”)

MLSA is a Luxembourg public limited liability company. The object
of MLSA is to make loans and to grant financial assistance in any
form whatsoever to companies which are part of its group.

MLICo. is a Curagao limited partnership of unlimited duration
organised under the laws of Curagao. MLICo. engages primarily in
the issuance of warrants and related financial instruments and the
distribution of managed fund products.

Guarantor: Bank of America Corporation (“BAC” or the “Guarantor”)

BAC is a Delaware corporation, a bank holding company and a
financial holding company. BAC provides a diversified range of
banking and non-banking financial services and products worldwide.

Description: Note, Warrant and Certificate Programme

Guarantee: The payment and non-cash delivery obligations under the Securities
are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by BAC upon and
subject to the terms set out in the Guarantee.

Calculation Agent: Merrill Lynch International or such other calculation agent specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Arranger: Merrill Lynch International

In respect of Notes:

Issuer: MLSA

Dealers: Merrill Lynch International
Merrill Lynch Capital Markets AG
Merrill Lynch (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Notes may also be issued to other dealers and third parties.

Maximum nominal MLSA may issue up to EUR 15,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in
amount of Notes other currencies) under this Programme and its other structured
which may be issued products programmes

under the

Programme:

Principal Paying Deutsche Bank AG, London Branch

Agent:

Registrar: Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.
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Issue Price:

Terms of Notes:

Physical Delivery
Notes:

Negative Pledge:
Cross Default:

Events of Default:

Taxation:

Summary of the Programme

Notes may be issued on a fully-paid or partly-paid basis at an issue
price which is at par or a discount to, or a premium over, par.

Notes may be denominated in any currency specified in the
applicable Final Terms with any agreed maturity, subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory restrictions.
Notes with maturities of 183 calendar days or less will have a
minimum denomination of U.S.$500,000 (or its equivalent in other
currencies).

Notes may: (i) bear interest at a fixed or floating rate; (ii) not bear
interest; (iii) have an interest amount or rate and/or a redemption
amount determined or calculated by reference to one or more
specified underlying assets or bases of reference such as indices
(including equity, bond, commodity or inflation indices), currency
exchange rates, shares (including GDRs and/or ADRs), fund shares
or units, commodities or the credit of one or more underlying
entities; (iv) be redeemed by physical delivery (‘‘Physical Delivery
Notes”) of specified asset(s) (each such underlying asset or basis of
reference, a “Reference Item” and any Reference Item Linked
Notes, “Reference Item Linked Securities””); (v) reference any
combination of the foregoing; and/or (vi) have such other terms and
conditions as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Interest periods, interest rates and the terms of and/or amounts
payable on redemption will be specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

The Final Terms will indicate either that the relevant Notes may not
be redeemed prior to their stated maturity (other than in specified
instalments, (if applicable), for taxation reasons, following an Event
of Default and acceleration of the Notes, or (if applicable) following
an Additional Disruption Event), or that such Notes will be
redeemable at the option of the Issuer and/or the Noteholders.

In order to receive the relevant asset(s), a Noteholder must deliver
an Asset Transfer Notice on or prior to a specified cut-off time and
pay all taxes, duties and/or expenses arising from delivery of the
relevant assets. For certain Reference Item Linked Notes, if certain
disruption events occur on settlement, the relevant settlement date
may be postponed and in certain circumstances the Issuer will be
entitled to make payment of a cash amount in lieu of physical
delivery.

The Guarantee provides that, in the case of Physical Delivery Notes,
BAC will have the right to elect not to make physical delivery of the
Entitlement, but rather to pay the Guaranteed Cash Settlement
Amount as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

None
None

Terms of the Notes contain, among others, events of default covering
non-payment or non-delivery and relating to the insolvency of the
Issuer and BAC.

The Issuer or BAC will, subject to certain limitations and exceptions
(set forth in Condition 8 of the “Terms and Conditions of the
Notes”), pay to Noteholders who are United States Aliens or a
Luxembourg Non-resident (each as defined in Condition 8 of the
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes”) such additional amounts as
may be necessary so that every net payment of principal or interest or
other amount with respect to the Notes or the Guarantee after
deduction or withholding for or on account of any present or future
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tax, assessment or other governmental charge imposed upon such
Noteholders or by reason of the making of such payment, by the
United States or Luxembourg or any political subdivision or taxing
authority of or in the United States or Luxembourg, as the case may
be, and will not be less than the amount provided for in the Notes or
the Guarantee to be then due and payable, except as provided in
Condition 8 of the “Terms and Conditions of the Notes™.

MLSA (in respect of Certificates only)
MLICo. (in respect of Warrants and Certificates)
Merrill Lynch International

The Bank of New York Mellon, London Branch

BNP Paribas Securities Services S.A., Frankfurt Branch

The Bank of New York Mellon (Luxembourg) S.A.
Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.

W&C Securities may be issued at such price as shall be determined
by the relevant Issuer or Manager appointed in respect of the issue.

MLSA may from time to time issue Certificates and MLICo. may
from time to time issue Warrants and Certificates of any kind,
including but not limited to Warrants or Certificates linked to one or
more underlying assets or bases of reference such as indices
(including equity, bond, commodity or inflation indices), currency
exchange rates, shares (including GDRs and/or ADRs), fund shares
or units, commodities or the credit of one or more underlying entities
(each such underlying asset or basis of reference, a ‘Reference Item”
and any Reference Item linked W&C Securities, ““Reference Item
Linked Securities”) or any combination of the foregoing and on such
terms as may be determined by the relevant Issuer and specified in
the applicable Final Terms.

W&C Securities may or may not pay additional amounts as specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Settlement may be by way of cash payment (‘“Cash Settled”) or
physical delivery (“‘Physical Delivery’’). Warrants sold in the United
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, United States Persons
who are QIBs and also QPs, Swedish Securities and Finnish
Securities will be Cash Settled only. For certain Physical Delivery
W&C Securities, if certain disruption events occur on settlement, the
relevant settlement date may be postponed and in certain
circumstances the relevant Issuer will be entitled to make payment
of a cash amount in lieu of physical delivery.

The Guarantee provides that, in the case of Physical Delivery W& C
Securities, BAC will have the right to elect not to make physical
delivery of the Entitlement, but rather to pay the Guaranteed Cash
Settlement Amount as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

European Style Warrants are only exercisable on the Exercise Date.

American Style Warrants are exercisable on any Exercise Business
Day during the Exercise Period.
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The applicable Final Terms will specify whether or not Warrants will
be automatically exercised.

The applicable Final Terms will specify if Warrants may be
automatically exercised early (as a result of an Issuer Call, a
mandatory early exercise or Holder put).

Certificates will be automatically exercised on the Exercise Date. In
the case of Physical Delivery Certificates in order to receive the
Entitlement in respect of a Certificate, the Holder must deliver a
Collection Notice prior to a specified cut-off time and pay all taxes,
duties and/or expenses arising from such delivery.

The applicable Final Terms will specify if the Exercise Date for
Certificates may be brought forward (as a result of an Issuer Call, a
mandatory early exercise or a Holder put).

A holder of a W&C Security must pay all taxes, duties and/or
expenses arising from the exercise and settlement of such W&C
Security and/or if applicable, delivery of the Entitlement. The Issuer
shall not be liable for tax, duty, withholding or other payment which
may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, exercise or
enforcement of any W&C Security and all payments will be made
subject to any such tax, duty, withholding or other payment.

Amounts payable in respect of Index Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to one or more Indices. The Index may
reference or be comprised of reference equities, bonds, property,
currency exchange rates or other assets or bases of reference.

Index Linked Securities may be subject to early redemption or
cancellation, as applicable, or adjustment if an Index is modified or
cancelled and there is no successor index acceptable to the
Calculation Agent, if the Index’s Sponsor fails to calculate and
announce the Index, if certain market disruption events occur, or if
certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur
with respect to the relevant Issuer’s and/or any Affiliate’s hedging
arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of an
Index, such valuation will be postponed and may be made by the
Calculation Agent. Payments may also be postponed.

Amounts payable in respect of Share Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single Share or basket of Shares. Share
Linked Securities may also provide for settlement by physical
delivery of a specified amount of Shares of one or more
companies, subject to payment of the Exercise Price (in case of
Warrants) and any other sums payable.

Share Linked Securities may, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer,
be subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including valuation and in certain circumstances Share
substitutions) if certain corporate events (such as events affecting the
value of a Share (including Share divisions or consolidations,
extraordinary dividends and capital calls), de-listing of a Share,
insolvency, merger or nationalisation of a Share issuer, a tender offer
or redenomination of a Share) occur, if certain events (such as
illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to the
relevant Issuer’s and/or any Affiliate’s hedging arrangements, or if
insolvency filings are made with respect to a Share issuer.
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If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of a Share,
such valuation will be postponed and may be made by the
Calculation Agent. Payments may also be postponed.

Amounts payable in respect of Debt Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single Debt Instrument or basket of Debt
Instruments. Debt Linked Securities may also provide for settlement
by physical delivery of a specified amount of Debt Instruments of one
or more issuers, as applicable, subject to payment of the relevant
Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and any other sums payable.

Certain disruption events affecting trading on exchanges on which
the relevant Debt Instrument(s) or options contracts or futures
contracts with respect to the Debt Instrument(s) are traded may
occur with respect to Debt Linked Securities.

Amounts payable in respect of GDR/ADR Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single global depositary receipt
(“GDR”) or American depositary receipt (“ADR”) or a basket of
GDRs and/or ADRs. GDR/ADR Linked Securities may also
provide for settlement by physical delivery of a specified amount of
GDRs and/or ADRs subject to payment of the relevant Exercise
Price (in the case of Warrants) and any other sums payable.

GDR/ADR Linked Securities may, at the discretion of the relevant
Issuer, be subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable,
or adjustment (including valuation and in certain circumstances
GDR/ADR substitutions) if certain corporate events (such as events
affecting the value of a GDR and/or ADR (including GDR, ADR or
underlying share divisions or consolidations, extraordinary dividends
and capital calls), de-listing of a GDR, ADR or underlying share,
insolvency, merger or nationalisation of an underlying share issuer, a
tender offer or redenomination of a GDR, ADR and/or underlying
share) occur, if certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or cost
increases) occur with respect to the relevant Issuer’s and/or any
Affiliate’s hedging arrangements, or if insolvency filings are made
with respect to an underlying share issuer.

Amounts payable in respect of FX Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to the rate of exchange of a single currency
or basket of currencies. FX Linked Securities may also provide for
settlement by physical delivery of a specified amount of the relevant
currencies, subject to payment of the relevant Exercise Price (in the
case of Warrants) and any other sums payable.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to a rate of exchange
of a single currency or basket of currencies, such valuation may be
postponed and/or made by the Calculation Agent.

Amounts payable in respect of Commodity Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single Commodity and/or Commodity
Index or basket of Commodities and/or Commodity Indices.
Commodity Linked Securities may also provide for settlement by
physical delivery of a specified amount of Commodities, subject to
payment of the relevant Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and
any other sums payable.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of a
Commodity or futures or options contracts relating to such
Commodity, such valuation may be postponed and/or made by the
Calculation Agent. Commodity Linked Securities linked to a
Commodity Index may be subject to adjustment if the Commodity
Index is modified or cancelled and there is no successor acceptable to
the Calculation Agent or if the Commodity Index’s sponsor fails to
calculate and announce the index.
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Amounts payable in respect of Fund Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to units, interests or shares in a single Fund or
basket of Funds. Fund Linked Securities may also provide for
settlement by physical delivery of a specified amount of units,
interests or shares of one or more Funds, subject to payment of the
relevant Exercise Price (in the case of Warrants) and any other sums
payable.

Fund Linked Securities may, at the discretion of the relevant Issuer,
be subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including as to valuations and fund substitutions) if
certain corporate events (such as insolvency (or an analogous event)
or nationalisation of a Fund; litigation against, or regulatory events
occurring with respect to, a Fund; suspensions of Fund subscriptions
or redemptions; certain changes in net asset value or violations of
leverage restrictions of a Fund; Fund reporting disruptions; or
modifications to the investment objectives or changes in the nature or
administration of a Fund) occur, if certain valuation or settlement
disruption events occur with respect to a Fund, or if certain events
(such as illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to
the relevant Issuer’s and/or any Affiliate’s hedging arrangements.

Fund Linked Securities linked to Exchange Traded Funds may be
subject to early redemption or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including as to valuation) if certain corporate events
(such as events affecting the value of a Fund Share including share
divisions or consolidation, de-listing of a Fund Share, insolvency,
merger or nationalisation of a Fund Share issuer, or a tender offer of
a Fund Share) or modifications of its investment objectives occur or if
certain events occur with respect to the Issuer’s and/or Affiliate’s
hedging arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to the valuation of a
Fund Share in respect of an Exchange Traded Fund, such valuation
may be postponed and may be made by the Calculation Agent.
Payments may also be postponed.

Amounts payable in respect of Inflation Linked Securities will be
calculated by reference to a single Inflation Index or basket of
Inflation Indices.

Inflation Linked Securities may be subject to early redemption or
cancellation, as applicable, and/or adjustment if an Inflation Index is
modified or cancelled and there is no successor index acceptable to
the Calculation Agent, or if the Inflation Index Sponsor fails to
calculate and announce the Index.

Amounts payable and/or deliverable in respect of Credit Linked
Securities will be calculated by reference to the credit of a specified
entity or entities.

If the Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice
Delivery Period, the Credit Linked Securities will be redeemed or
cancelled, as the case may be, and the relevant Issuer will: (a) where
“Conditions to Settlement — Auction Settlement” is specified as
being applicable in the Final Terms and subject to the occurrence of a
Fallback Settlement Event, pay the Auction Settlement Amount, (b)
if “Conditions to Settlement — Cash Settlement” is specified in the
applicable Final Terms or a Fallback Settlement Event has occurred
and the Fallback Settlement Method is Cash Settlement, pay the
Credit Event Redemption Amount or (c) if “Conditions to
Settlement — Physical Settlement” is specified as being applicable
in the Final Terms or a Fallback Settlement Event has occurred and
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the Fallback Settlement Method is Physical Settlement, Deliver the
Deliverable Obligations comprising the Entitlement.

Amounts payable in respect of Saudi Share Linked Warrants will be
calculated by reference to the notional liquidation by a Hypothetical
Dealer of a Hedge Position corresponding to a single Share or basket
of Shares listed on the Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul) during the
relevant Execution Period commencing on the Valuation Date.

Saudi Share Linked Warrants may, at the discretion of MLICo., be
subject to early settlement or cancellation, as applicable, or
adjustment (including valuation and in certain circumstances Share
substitutions) if certain corporate events (such as events affecting the
value of a Share (including Share divisions or consolidations,
extraordinary dividends and capital calls), de-listing of a Share,
insolvency, merger or nationalisation of a Share issuer, a tender offer
or redenomination of a Share) occur, if certain events (such as
illegality, any disruptions, cost increases, or Saudi Arabian-specific
regulatory or other events) occur with respect to MLICo.’s and/or
any Affiliate’s hedging arrangements, or if insolvency filings are
made with respect to a Share issuer.

Global Securities and Clearing Systems

Generally each Tranche of Securities (other than Swedish Securities,
Finnish Securities, Swiss Securities and CREST Securities) will at all
times be represented by a global warrant, a global certificate or a
global note in bearer or registered form as specified in the applicable
Final Terms (in any such form, the ‘“Global Security”), as applicable,
deposited on the issue date specified in the applicable Final Terms
with, in the case of Securities held in a Clearing System (other than
the Swedish CSD, Euroclear Finland, SIS and Euroclear UK), a
common depositary (which shall at all times be an entity located
outside the United Kingdom) for FEuroclear Bank SA/NV
(‘“‘Euroclear”), Clearstream  Banking,  société  anonyme
(““Clearstream, Luxembourg’’), and/or Euroclear France (together
with Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, the Swedish CSD,
Euroclear Finland, SIS and Euroclear UK, the “Clearing Systems”’
and each a “Clearing System”’).

Swedish Warrants and Swedish Certificates

Swedish Warrants and Swedish Certificates (“Swedish Securities’)
may be issued under the Programme, and will be registered in
uncertificated and dematerialised electronic book-entry form with
Euroclear Sweden AB, the Swedish central securities depository (the
“Swedish CSD”’) in accordance with all applicable Swedish laws,
regulations and rules. Swedish Securities will not be issued in
definitive form.

Swedish Notes

Swedish Notes may be issued under the Programme and each
Tranche of Swedish Notes will consist of a Tranche of Registered
Notes. A link will be maintained between Euroclear and the Swedish
CSD for the purpose of maintaining computerised book-entry
records of the beneficial owners’ interests in the Swedish Notes
pursuant to and in accordance with all applicable Swedish laws,
regulations and rules. No definitive or global notes or certificates will
be issued to represent such beneficial owner’s interests recorded in
the register of the Swedish CSD.
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Finnish Warrants and Finnish Certificates

Finnish Warrants and Finnish Certificates (‘‘Finnish Securities’’) may
be issued under the Programme, and will be registered in
uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form with the Finnish
central securities depository, Euroclear Finland Ltd. (‘‘Euroclear
Finland”) in accordance with all applicable Finnish laws, regulations
and rules. Finnish Securities will not be issued in definitive form.

Crest Securities

Crest Warrants and Crest Certificates (“Crest Securities’’) may be
issued under the Programme, and will be issued into and cleared
through accounts at Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited (‘“‘Euroclear
UK?”) in accordance with all applicable UK laws, regulations and
rules. Crest Securities will not be issued in definitive form.

Swiss Securities

Swiss Securities will on issue be constituted by a Swiss Global
Warrant or a Swiss Global Certificate, as the case may be, which will
be deposited with SIS acting as central depositary on or before the
Issue Date of such Swiss Securities and no Holder of Swiss Securities
will at any time have the right to effect or demand the conversion of
the Swiss Global Warrant or Swiss Global Certificate, respectively,
representing such Swiss Securities into, or the delivery of, Warrants
or Certificates, as the case may be, in uncertificated or definitive
form.

The Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and
unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and rank equally among
themselves and rank equally (subject to such exceptions as are from
time to time provided by applicable laws) with all other present and
future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured
indebtedness (in the case of Notes) or obligations (in the case of
W&C Securities) of the relevant Issuer.

The obligations of BAC under the Guarantee, save for such
exceptions as may be provided by applicable laws and regulations
or judicial order, rank pari passu with its other present and future
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations.

Application has been made to the CSSF to approve this Base
Prospectus as a base prospectus. Application has also been made to
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the
Programme to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange’s regulated market and to be listed on the Official List of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Application has also been made to
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the
Programme during the 12 months from the date of this Base
Prospectus to be admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange’s alternative market — Euro MTF - and to be listed on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

The W&C Securities may be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange and
admitted to trading on Scoach Switzerland and/or listed or admitted
to trading, as the case may be, on such other or further stock
exchange(s) or market(s) as determined by the relevant Issuer.
Securities which are neither listed nor admitted to trading on any
market may also be issued.

The Securities and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or
in connection with them will be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, English law. The Guarantee will be governed by,
and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
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The Programme has no rating. If any issue of Notes under the
Programme is to be rated, the rating of such Notes will be specified in
the applicable Final Terms. A rating is not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

There are restrictions on the offer, sale and transfer of the Securities
in the United States, the European Economic Area (including
Luxembourg, the United Kingdom, France, Italy and The
Netherlands), Argentina, Australia, China, Curacao, Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Israel, Japan, Malaysia, Panama, Philippines, Russia,
Singapore, Switzerland, Taiwan and Uruguay, and such other
restrictions as may be required in connection with the offering and
sale of a particular series of Securities (see “Offering and Sale”).

In the course of conducting their business operations, BAC and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), including MLSA and MLICo.,
are exposed to a variety of risks that are inherent to the financial
services industry, including the risks set out below. As required by
the context, references to “BAC” may refer to BAC individually,
BAC and its subsidiaries or certain of BAC’s subsidiaries or affiliates
individually or collectively.

° BAC’s businesses and results of operations have been, and may
continue to be, materially and adversely affected by the U.S.
and international financial markets and economic conditions
generally.

° Adverse changes to BAC’s credit ratings from the major credit
ratings agencies could have a material adverse effect on BAC’s
liquidity, cash flows, competitive position, financial condition
and results of operations by significantly limiting its access to
the funding or capital markets, increasing its borrowing costs, or
triggering additional collateral or funding requirements under
certain bilateral provisions of its trading and collateralised
financing contracts.

° BAC’s liquidity, cash flows, financial condition and results of
operations, and competitive position may be significantly
adversely affected if BAC is unable to access capital markets,
continue to raise deposits, sell assets on favourable terms, or if
there is an increase in its borrowing costs.

° BAC is a holding company and as such it is dependent upon its
subsidiaries for liquidity, including its ability to pay dividends to
its stockholders.

° BAC has been, and expects to continue to be, required to
repurchase loans and/or reimburse the government sponsored
enterprises (‘““GSEs”’) and monoline bond insurance companies
(‘“monolines”) for losses due to claims related to
representations and warranties made in connection with
mortgage-backed securities and other loans, and has received
similar claims, and may receive additional claims, from whole
loan purchasers and private-label securitisation investors. The
resolution of these claims could have a material adverse effect
on BAC’s cash flows, financial condition, and results of
operations.

° Continued, or increasing, declines in the domestic and
international housing markets, including home prices, may
adversely affect BAC’s consumer and commercial portfolios
and have a significant adverse effect on its financial condition
and results of operations.
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BAC temporarily suspended its foreclosure sales nationally in
the fourth quarter of 2010 to conduct an assessment of its
foreclosure processes. Subsequently, numerous state and
federal investigations of foreclosure processes across BAC’s
industry have been initiated. Those investigations and any
irregularities that might be found in BAC’s foreclosure
processes, along with any remedial steps taken in response to
governmental investigations or to BAC’s own internal
assessment, could have a material adverse effect on BAC’s
financial condition and results of operations.

BAC’s failure to satisfy its obligations as servicer in the
residential mortgage securitisation process, including
obligations related to residential mortgage foreclosure actions,
along with other losses BAC could incur in its capacity as
servicer, could have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition and results of operations.

Increased credit risk, due to economic or market disruptions,
insufficient credit loss reserves or concentration of credit risk
may necessitate increased provisions for credit losses and could
have an adverse effect on BAC’s financial condition and results
of operations.

BAC could suffer losses as a result of the actions of or
deterioration in the commercial soundness of its counterparties
and other financial services institutions.

BAC’s derivatives businesses may expose it to unexpected risks
and potential losses.

BAC’s businesses and results of operations have been, and may
continue to be, significantly adversely affected by changes in the
levels of market volatility and by other financial or capital
market conditions.

Declines in the value of certain of BAC’s assets could have an
adverse effect on its results of operations.

BAC’s commodities activities, particularly its physical
commodities  business, subject it to performance,
environmental and other risks that may result in significant
cost and liabilities.

Bank regulatory agencies may require BAC to hold higher
levels of regulatory capital, increase its regulatory capital ratios,
or increase liquidity which could result in the need to issue
additional securities that qualify as regulatory capital or to
liquidate company assets.

Government measures to regulate the financial industry,
including the Financial Reform Act, either individually, in
combination or in the aggregate, could require BAC to change
certain of its business practices, impose significant additional
costs on it, limit the products that it offers, limit its ability to
pursue business opportunities in an efficient manner, require it
to increase its regulatory capital, impact the value of assets that
it holds, significantly reduce its revenues or otherwise
materially and adversely affect its businesses, financial
condition or results of operations.

BAC faces substantial potential legal liability and significant
regulatory action, which could have material adverse effects on
its cash flows, financial condition and results of operations, or
cause significant reputational harm to BAC.
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° Changes in governmental fiscal and monetary policy could
adversely affect BAC’s financial condition and results of
operations.

° BAC faces significant and increasing competition in the
financial services industry.

° Damage to BAC’s reputation could significantly harm its
businesses, including its competitive position and business
prospects.

° BAC’s ability to attract and retain qualified employees is
critical to the success of its businesses and failure to do so could
adversely affect its business prospects, including BAC’s
competitive position and results of operations.

° BAC’s inability to adapt its products and services to evolving
industry standards and consumer preferences could harm its
businesses.

° BAC’s risk management framework may not be effective in
mitigating risk and reducing the potential for significant losses.

° A failure in or breach of BAC’s operational or security systems
or infrastructure, or those of third parties, could disrupt BAC’s
businesses, result in the disclosure of confidential information
or damage its reputation. Any such failure also could have a
significant adverse effect on BAC’s reputation, cash flows,
financial condition, and results of operations.

° Any failure to successfully integrate or otherwise realise the
expected benefits from BAC’s recent acquisitions could
adversely affect its results of operations.

° BAC is subject to numerous political, economic, market,
reputational, operational, legal, regulatory and other risks in
the non-U.S. jurisdictions in which it operates which could
adversely impact its businesses.

° Changes in accounting standards or inaccurate estimates or
assumptions in the application of accounting policies could
adversely affect BAC’s financial condition and results of
operations.

POTENTIAL INVESTORS MUST REVIEW THE APPLICABLE
FINAL TERMS TO ASCERTAIN WHAT THE RELEVANT
REFERENCE ITEM(S) ARE AND TO SEE HOW THE CASH
SETTLEMENT AMOUNT, FINAL REDEMPTION AMOUNT
OR ENTITLEMENT, AS THE CASE MAY BE, PAYABLE
AND/OR DELIVERABLE ON THE SECURITIES AND ANY
INTEREST PAYMENTS (IN THE CASE OF NOTES) OR ANY
ADDITIONAL AMOUNT PAYMENTS (IN THE CASE OF
W&C SECURITIES) ARE DETERMINED AND WHEN SUCH
AMOUNTS ARE PAYABLE AND/OR DELIVERABLE, AS
THE CASE MAY BE, BEFORE MAKING ANY DECISION TO
PURCHASE ANY SECURITIES.
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Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS

Each of MLSA, MLICo. and BAC believes that the following factors may affect its ability to fulfil its
obligations in respect of Securities issued under the Programme and/or are material for the purpose of
assessing the market risks associated with Securities issued under the Programme. All of these factors are
contingencies which may or may not occur, and none of MLSA, MLICo. or BAC is in a position to express
a view on the likelihood of any such contingency occurring.

Each of MLSA, MLICo. and BAC believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks
inherent in investing in Securities issued under the Programme, but the inability of the relevant Issuer or
BAC to pay any cash amounts in connection with any cash settled securities (‘‘Cash Settled Securities”) or
to deliver the Entitlement in connection with any physical delivery securities (‘‘Physical Delivery
Securities””) may occur for other reasons, and neither the Issuers nor BAC represents that the statements
below regarding the risks of holding any Securities are exhaustive. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to any of MLSA, MLICo. or BAC or that any of MLSA, MLICo. or BAC currently
believes to be immaterial could also have a material impact on its business operations or the Securities. The
Final Terms in respect of an issue of Securities may contain additional Risk Factors in respect of such
Securities. Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base
Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to them in the *‘Terms
and Conditions of the Notes” or the “Terms and Conditions of the W&C Securities”, as applicable
(together the ‘““Conditions” and references herein to ‘“‘relevant Conditions” shall be construed
accordingly).

Risk factors relating to the Issuers

Factors that may affect the relevant Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under Securities issued under
the Programme

The Issuers are finance vehicles whose principal purposes are to raise debt or enter into financial
contracts to assist the financing activities of the relevant Issuer’s affiliates. Accordingly, the Issuers do not
have any trading assets and do not generate any significant net income.

MLICo. engages primarily in the issuance of warrants and related financial instruments and the
distribution of Merrill Lynch-branded managed funds world-wide (with the exception of North America)
and other managed fund products.

The main markets in which MLSA sells securities are the Eurobond markets.

The Issuers’ payment and non-cash delivery obligations under Securities issued under the Programme are
guaranteed unconditionally and irrevocably pursuant to a Guarantee. As a result, if the Guarantor’s
financial condition were to deteriorate, the Issuers and investors in the Securities may suffer direct and
materially adverse consequences. Accordingly, prospective investors in Securities should review, inter
alia, the factors below regarding BAC, the Group (as defined above) and the Group’s businesses and
industry, which may affect BAC’s ability to fulfil its obligations under the Guarantee.

Risk factors relating to the Guarantor and the Group and to the Group’s Businesses and Industry

The following risk factors refer to BAC, rather than directly to the Issuers. When used in this Base
Prospectus, and as required by the context, “BAC” may refer to BAC individually, BAC and its
subsidiaries, or certain of BAC’s subsidiaries or affiliates, individually or collectively.

Risk factors relating to BAC and to BAC’s Businesses and Industry

In the course of conducting its business operations, BAC is exposed to a variety of risks, some of which
are inherent in the financial services industry and others of which are more specific to BAC’s businesses.
The following discussion addresses some of the key risks that could affect BAC’s businesses, operations,
and financial condition. Other factors that could affect BAC’s financial condition and operations are
discussed in forward-looking statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A’) of
BAC’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 31 December 2010 (the “BAC 2010 Annual
Report”’). However, other factors besides those discussed below or in the BAC 2010 Annual Report
could also adversely affect BAC’s businesses, operations, and financial condition. Therefore, the risk
factors below should not be considered a complete list of potential risks that BAC may face.
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BAC’s businesses and results of operations have been, and may continue to be, materially and adversely
affected by the U.S. and international financial markets and economic conditions generally.

BAC’s businesses and results of operations are materially affected by the financial markets and general
economic conditions in the United States and abroad, including factors such as the level and volatility of
short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, home prices, unemployment and under-employment
levels, bankruptcies, household income, consumer spending, fluctuations in both debt and equity capital
markets, liquidity of the global financial markets, the availability and cost of capital and credit, investor
sentiment and confidence in the financial markets, and the strength of the U.S. economy and the non-U.S.
economies in which BAC operates. The deterioration of any of these conditions can adversely affect
BAC’s consumer and commercial businesses and securities portfolios, its level of charge-offs and
provision for credit losses, its capital levels and liquidity and its results of operations.

U.S. financial markets have improved from the severe financial crisis that dominated the domestic
economy in the second half of 2008 and early 2009, but mortgage markets remain fragile. The financial
crisis that gripped the European Union beginning in spring 2010 directly affected U.S. financial market
behaviour and the financial services industry. Any intensification of Europe’s financial crisis or the
inability to address the sources of future financial turmoil in Europe may adversely affect the U.S. and
international financial markets and the financial services industry. Such adverse effect may involve
declines in liquidity, loss of investor confidence in the financial services industry, disruptions in credit
markets, declines in the values of many asset classes, reductions in home prices and increased
unemployment.

Although the U.S. economy has continued to recover throughout 2010 and growth of real Gross
Domestic Product strengthened in the second half of 2010, the elevated levels of unemployment and
household debt, along with continued stress in the consumer and commercial real estate markets, pose
challenges for domestic economic performance and the banking environment. Consumer spending,
exports and business investment in equipment and software rose during 2010, and showed accelerated
momentum in the second half of 2010, but labour markets and housing markets remain weak and pose
risks. The sustained high unemployment rate and the lengthy duration of unemployment have directly
impaired consumer finances and pose risks to the financial services sector. The housing market remains
weak and the elevated levels of distressed and delinquent mortgages add a significant degree of risk to the
mortgage market, in addition to risks inherent to the business of banking. The risks related to the
distressed mortgage market may be accentuated by attempts to forestall foreclosure proceedings, as well
as state and federal investigations into foreclosure practices throughout the financial services industry.
These factors may adversely affect credit quality, bank lending and the general financial services sector.

These conditions, as well as any further challenges stemming from the continuing global economic
recovery and recent financial reform initiatives, such as the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (the “Financial Reform Act), could have a material adverse effect on BAC’s
businesses and results of operations in the future.

For additional information about economic conditions and challenges discussed above, see the Executive
Summary — 2010 Economic and Business Environment in the MD&A beginning on page 25 of the BAC
2010 Annual Report.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the Potential Inability of BAC to Meet its Contractual and Contingent Financial
Obligations, On or Off-Balance Sheet, as they Become Due.

Adverse changes to BAC’s credit ratings from the major credit ratings agencies could have a material
adverse effect on BAC’s liquidity, cash flows, competitive position, financial condition and results of
operations by significantly limiting its access to the funding or the capital markets, increasing its
borrowing costs, or triggering additional collateral or funding requirements under certain bilateral
provisions of its trading and collateralised financing contracts.

BAC’s borrowing costs and ability to raise funds are directly impacted by its credit ratings. In addition,
credit ratings may be important to customers or counterparties when BAC competes in certain markets
and when BAC seeks to engage in certain transactions including OTC derivatives. Credit ratings and
outlooks are opinions on BAC’s creditworthiness and that of its obligations or securities, including long-
term debt, short-term borrowings, preferred stock and other securities, including asset securitisations.
BACs credit ratings are subject to ongoing review by the ratings agencies and thus may change from time
to time based on a number of factors, including BAC’s own financial strength and operations as well as

30



Risk Factors

factors not under BAC'’s control, such as rating-agency-specific criteria or frameworks for BAC’s industry
or certain security types, which are subject to revision from time to time, and conditions affecting the
financial services industry generally.

There can be no assurance that BAC will maintain its current ratings. A reduction in certain of BAC’s
credit ratings or the ratings of certain asset-backed securitisations would likely have a material adverse
effect on BAC’s liquidity, access to credit markets, the related cost of funds, its businesses and on certain
trading revenues, particularly in those businesses where counterparty creditworthiness is critical. In
connection with certain over-the-counter (“OTC’) derivatives contracts and other trading agreements,
counterparties may require BAC to provide additional collateral or to terminate these contracts and
agreements and collateral financing arrangements in the event of a credit ratings downgrade. Termination
of these contracts and agreements could cause BAC to sustain losses and impair its liquidity by requiring
BAC to make significant cash payments or securities movements. If Bank of America Corporation’s or
Bank of America, N.A.’s commercial paper or short-term credit ratings (which currently have the
following ratings: P-1 by Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. (“Moody’s”), A-1 by Standard and Poor’s
Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”’) and F1+ by Fitch, Inc.
(“Fitch”)) were downgraded by one or more levels, the potential loss of short-term funding sources such
as commercial paper or repurchase agreement financing and the effect on BAC’s incremental cost of
funds would be material.

The ratings agencies have indicated that, as a systemically important financial institution, BAC’s credit
ratings currently reflect their expectation that, if necessary, BAC would receive significant support from
the U.S. government. All three major ratings agencies, however, have indicated they will re-evaluate and
could reduce the uplift they include in BAC’s ratings for government support for reasons arising from
financial services regulatory reform proposals or legislation. In February 2010, S&P affirmed BAC’s
current credit ratings but revised the outlook to negative from stable based on its belief that it is less
certain whether the U.S. government would be willing to provide extraordinary support. On 27 July 2010,
Moody’s affirmed BAC’s current ratings but revised the outlook to negative from stable due to its
expectation for lower levels of government support over time as a result of the passage of the Financial
Reform Act. Also, on 22 October 2010, Fitch placed BAC’s credit ratings on Rating Watch Negative
from stable outlook due to proposed rulemaking that could negatively impact its assessment of future
systemic government support. Any expectation that government support may be diminished or withheld
in the future would likely have a negative impact on BAC’s credit ratings. The timing of the agencies’
assessment of potential government support, as well as its impact on BAC’s ratings, is currently uncertain.

For additional information about BAC’s credit ratings, see Liquidity Risk — Credit Ratings in the MD&A
beginning on page 70 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

BAC’s liquidity, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations, and competitive position may
be significantly adversely affected if BAC is unable to access capital markets, continue to raise deposits,
sell assets on favourable terms, or if there is an increase in its borrowing costs.

Liquidity is essential to BAC’s businesses. BAC funds its assets primarily with globally sourced deposits
in its bank entities, as well as secured and unsecured liabilities transacted in the capital markets. BAC
relies on certain unsecured and secured funding sources, such as the commercial paper and repo markets,
which are typically short-term and credit-sensitive in nature. BAC also engages in asset securitisation
transactions to fund consumer lending activities. BAC’s liquidity could be significantly adversely affected
by an inability to access the capital markets; illiquidity or volatility in the capital markets; unforeseen
outflows of cash, including customer deposits, funding for commitments and contingencies; inability to
sell assets on favourable terms; or negative perceptions about BAC’s short — or long-term business
prospects, including changes in BAC’s credit ratings. Several of these factors may arise due to
circumstances beyond BAC’s control, such as a general market disruption, negative views about the
financial services industry generally, changes in the regulatory environment, actions by credit ratings
agencies or an operational problem that affects third parties or BAC. For example, during the recent
financial crisis BAC’s ability to raise funding was at times adversely affected in the U.S. and international
markets.

BAC'’s cost of obtaining funding is directly related to prevailing market interest rates and to its credit
spreads. Credit spreads are the amount in excess of the interest rate of U.S. Treasury securities, or other
benchmark securities, of the same maturity that BAC needs to pay to its funding providers. Increases in
interest rates and BAC’s credit spreads can significantly increase the cost of its funding. Changes in
BAC’s credit spreads are market-driven, and may be influenced by market perceptions of its
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creditworthiness. Changes to interest rates and BAC’s credit spreads occur continuously and may be
unpredictable and highly volatile.

For additional information about BAC’s liquidity position and other liquidity matters, including credit
ratings and outlooks and the policies and procedures BAC uses to manage its liquidity risks, see Capital
Management and Liquidity Risk in the MD&A beginning on pages 63 and 67, respectively, of the BAC
2010 Annual Report.

BAC is a holding company and, as such, it is dependent upon its subsidiaries for liquidity, including its
ability to pay dividends to stockholders.

Bank of America Corporation is a separate and distinct legal entity from its banking and non-banking
subsidiaries. BAC evaluates and manages liquidity on a legal entity basis. Legal entity liquidity is an
important consideration as there are legal and other limitations on BAC’s ability to utilise liquidity from
one legal entity to satisfy the liquidity requirements of another, including Bank of America Corporation.
For instance, Bank of America Corporation depends on dividends, distributions and other payments from
its banking and non-banking subsidiaries to fund dividend payments on its common stock and preferred
stock and to fund all payments on its other obligations, including debt obligations. Many of BAC’s
subsidiaries, including its bank and broker-dealer subsidiaries, are subject to laws that restrict dividend
payments or authorise regulatory bodies to block or reduce the flow of funds from those subsidiaries to
Bank of America Corporation. In addition, BAC’s bank and broker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to
restrictions on their ability to lend or transact with affiliates and to minimum regulatory capital
requirements, as well as restrictions on their ability to use funds deposited with them in bank or
brokerage accounts to fund their businesses. Additional restrictions on related-party transactions,
increased capital requirements and additional limitations on the use of funds on deposit in bank or
brokerage accounts, as well as lower earnings, can reduce the amount of funds available to meet the
obligations of Bank of America Corporation and even require Bank of America Corporation to provide
additional funding to such subsidiaries. Regulatory action of that kind could impede access to funds BAC
needs to make payments on its obligations or dividend payments. In addition, BAC’s right to participate
in a distribution of assets upon a subsidiary’s liquidation or reorganisation is subject to the prior claims of
the subsidiary’s creditors. For a further discussion regarding BAC'’s ability to pay dividends, see Note 15 —
Shareholders” Equity and Note 18 — Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Mortgage and Housing Market-Related Risk

BAC has been, and expects to continue to be, required to repurchase loans and/or reimburse Freddie
Mac (“FHLMC”) and Fannie Mae (“FNMA”, and collectively with FHLMC, “GSEs”’) and monoline
bond insurance companies (“monolines”) for losses due to claims related to representations and
warranties made in connection with mortgage-backed securities and other loans, and has received
similar claims, and may receive additional claims, from whole loan purchasers and private-label
securitisation investors. The resolution of these claims could have a material adverse effect on BAC’s
cash flows, financial condition, and results of operations.

BAC has securitised and continues to securitise first-lien mortgage loans generally in the form of
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) guaranteed by the GSEs or, in the case of Federal Housing
Administration insured and U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs guaranteed mortgage loans, by the
Government National Mortgage Association. BAC and its legacy companies and certain subsidiaries
have also sold pools of first-lien mortgages and home equity loans as private-label securitisations or in the
form of whole loans. In certain cases, all or a portion of the private-label MBS were insured by monolines
or other non-GSE counterparties. In connection with these securitisations and other transactions, BAC or
its subsidiaries or legacy companies made various representations and warranties. Breaches of these
representations and warranties may result in a requirement that BAC repurchase mortgage loans, or
indemnify or provide other remedies to counterparties.

On 31 December 2010, BAC reached agreements with the GSEs, where BAC paid $2.8 billion to resolve
repurchase claims involving first-lien residential mortgage loans sold directly to the GSEs by entities
related to legacy Countrywide Financial Corporation (‘‘Countrywide’’). The agreement with FHLMC
extinguishes all outstanding and potential mortgage repurchase and make-whole claims arising out of any
alleged breaches of selling representations and warranties related to loans sold directly by legacy
Countrywide to FHLMC through 2008, subject to certain exceptions BAC does not believe will be
material. The agreement with FNMA substantially resolves the existing pipeline of repurchase and make-
whole claims outstanding as of 20 September 2010 arising out of alleged breaches of selling
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representations and warranties related to loans sold directly by legacy Countrywide to FNMA. These
agreements with the GSEs do not cover outstanding and potential mortgage repurchase and make-whole
claims arising out of any alleged breaches of selling representations and warranties to legacy Bank of
America first-lien residential mortgage loans sold directly to the GSEs, loans sold to the GSEs other than
described above, loan servicing obligations, other contractual obligations or loans contained in private-
label securitisations. In addition, BAC has other unresolved representation and warranty claims from the
GSEs and certain monolines, and other non-GSE counterparties, and certain monolines have instituted
litigation against BAC with respect to representations and warranties claims.

BAC has experienced increasing repurchase and similar requests from non-GSE counterparties,
including monolines, private-label MBS securitisation investors and whole loan purchasers. BAC expects
additional activity in this area going forward and the volume of repurchase requests from monolines,
whole loan purchasers and investors in private-label MBS could increase in the future. It is reasonably
possible that future losses may occur and BAC’s estimate is that the upper range of loss related to non-
GSE sales could be $7.0 billion to $10.0 billion over existing accruals. This estimate does not represent a
probable loss, is based on currently available information, significant judgment, and a number of
assumptions that are subject to change. A significant portion of this estimate relates to loans originated
through legacy Countrywide, and the repurchase liability is generally limited to the original seller of the
loan. Future provisions and possible loss or range of loss may be impacted if actual results are different
from BAC’s assumptions regarding economic conditions, home prices and other matters and may vary by
counterparty. BAC expects that the resolution of the repurchase claims process with the non-GSE
counterparties will likely be a protracted process, and BAC will vigorously contest any request for
repurchase if it concludes that a valid basis for the repurchase claim does not exist.

The resolution of claims related to alleged breaches of these representations and warranties and
repurchase claims could have a material adverse effect on BAC’s financial condition, cash flows and
results of operations, and could exceed existing estimates and accruals. In addition, any accruals or
estimates BAC has made are based on assumptions which are subject to change.

For additional information about BAC’s representations and warranties exposure and past activities, see
Recent Events — Representations and Warrants Liability in the MD&A on page 33 of the BAC 2010
Annual Report, Recent Events — Private-label Residential Mortgage-backed Securities Matters in the
MD&A on page 35 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report, Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual
Obligations — Representations and Warranties in the MD&A beginning on page 52 of the BAC 2010
Annual Report, Note 9 — Representations and Warranties Obligations and Corporate Guarantees to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the BAC 2010 Annual Report, Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
and Contractual Obligations — Representations and Warranties and Other Mortgage-Related Matters
beginning on page 44 of the BAC 31 March 2011 Quarterly Report, and Recent Events — Monoline
Settlement Agreement on page 14 of the BAC 31 March 2011 Quarterly Report.

Continued, or increasing, declines in the domestic and international housing markets, including home
prices, may adversely affect BAC’s consumer and commercial portfolios and have a significant adverse
effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

Economic deterioration throughout 2009 and weakness in the economic recovery in 2010 was
accompanied by continued stress in the U.S. and international housing markets, including declines in
home prices. These declines in the housing market, with falling home prices and increasing foreclosures,
have negatively impacted the demand for many of BAC’s products and the credit performance of its
consumer and commercial portfolios. Additionally, BAC’s mortgage loan production volume is generally
influenced by the rate of growth in residential mortgage debt outstanding and the size of the residential
mortgage market, which has declined due to reduced activity in the housing market. Continued high
unemployment rates in the U.S. have added another element to the financial challenges facing U.S.
consumers and further compounded these stresses in the U.S. housing market as employment conditions
may be compelling some consumers to delay new home purchases or miss payments on existing
mortgages.

Conditions in the housing market have also resulted in significant write-downs of asset values in several
asset classes, notably mortgage-backed securities and exposure to monolines. These conditions may
negatively affect the value of real estate which could negatively affect BAC’s exposure to representations
and warranties. While there were continued indications throughout the past year that the U.S. economy is
stabilising, the performance of BAC’s overall consumer and commercial portfolios may not significantly
improve in the near future. A protracted continuation or worsening of these difficult housing market

33



Risk Factors

conditions would likely exacerbate the adverse effects outlined above and have a significant adverse
effect on BAC’s financial condition and results of operations.

BAC temporarily suspended its foreclosure sales nationally in the fourth quarter of 2010 to conduct an
assessment of its foreclosure processes. Subsequently, numerous state and federal investigations of
Jforeclosure processes across BAC’s industry have been initiated. Those investigations and any
irregularities that might be found in BAC’s foreclosure processes, along with any remedial steps
taken in response to governmental investigations or to BAC’s own internal assessment, could have a
material adverse effect on BAC’s financial condition and results of operations.

On 1 October 2010, BAC voluntarily stopped taking residential mortgage foreclosure proceedings to
judgment in states where foreclosure requires a court order following a legal proceeding (“‘judicial
states’’). On 8 October 2010, BAC stopped foreclosure sales in all states in order to complete an
assessment of the related business processes. These actions generally did not affect the initiation and
processing of foreclosures prior to judgment or sale of vacant real estate owned properties. BAC took
these precautionary steps in order to ensure its processes for handling foreclosures include the
appropriate controls and quality assurance. BAC’s review has involved an assessment of the foreclosure
process, including a review of completed foreclosure affidavits in pending proceedings.

As a result of that review, BAC identified and implemented process and control enhancements, and it
intends to monitor ongoing quality results of each process. After these enhancements were put in place,
BAC resumed foreclosure sales in most states where foreclosures are handled without judicial
supervision (‘‘non-judicial states’’) during the fourth quarter of 2010 and resumed foreclosure sales in the
remaining non-judicial states in the first quarter of 2011. BAC also commenced a rolling process of
preparing, as necessary, affidavits of indebtedness in pending foreclosure proceedings in order to resume
the process of taking these foreclosure proceedings to judgment in judicial states, beginning with
properties believed to be vacant, and with properties for which the mortgage was originated on a non-
owner-occupied basis. The process of preparing affidavits in pending proceedings continued in the first
quarter of 2011, and has resulted in prolonged adversary proceedings that delay certain foreclosure sales.

Law enforcement authorities in all 50 states and the U.S. Department of Justice and other federal
agencies, including certain bank supervisory authorities, continue to investigate alleged irregularities in
the foreclosure practices of residential mortgage servicers. Authorities have publicly stated that the scope
of the investigations extends beyond foreclosure documentation practices to include mortgage loan
modification and loss mitigation practices. BAC is cooperating with these investigations and is dedicating
significant resources to address these issues. The current environment of heightened regulatory scrutiny
has the potential to subject BAC to inquiries or investigations that could significantly adversely affect its
reputation. Such investigations by state and federal authorities, as well as any other governmental or
regulatory scrutiny of BAC’s foreclosure processes, could result in material fines, penalties, equitable
remedies (including requiring default servicing or other process changes), or other enforcement actions,
and result in significant legal costs in responding to governmental investigations and additional litigation.

While BAC cannot predict the ultimate impact of the temporary delay in foreclosure sales, or any issues
that may arise as a result of alleged irregularities with respect to previously completed foreclosure
activities, it may be subject to additional borrower and non-borrower litigation and governmental and
regulatory scrutiny related to its past and current foreclosure activities. This scrutiny may extend beyond
BAC’s pending foreclosure matters to issues arising out of alleged irregularities with respect to previously
completed foreclosure activities. BAC’s costs increased in the fourth quarter of 2010, and BAC expects
that additional costs incurred in connection with its foreclosure process assessment will continue into 2011
due to the additional resources necessary to perform the foreclosure process assessment, to revise
affidavit filings and to implement other operational changes. This will likely result in higher non-interest
expense, including higher servicing costs and legal expenses, in Consumer Real Estate Services. It is also
possible that the temporary suspension of foreclosure sales may result in additional costs and expenses,
including costs associated with the maintenance of properties or possible home price declines, while
foreclosures are delayed. In addition, required process changes could increase BAC’s default servicing
costs over the longer term. Finally, the time to complete foreclosure sales may increase temporarily,
which may result in an increase in non-performing loans and servicing advances and may impact the
collectibility of such advances and the value of BAC’s mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”’), MBS and real
estate owned properties. An increase in the time to complete foreclosure sales also may inflate the
amount of highly delinquent loans in BAC’s mortgage statistics, result in increasing levels of consumer
nonperforming loans, and could have a dampening effect on net interest margin as non-performing assets
rise. Accordingly, delays in foreclosure sales, including any delays beyond those currently anticipated,
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and BAC’s continued process enhancements and any issues that may arise out of alleged irregularities in
its foreclosure process could increase the costs associated with its mortgage operations.

Loan sales have not been materially impacted by the temporary delay in foreclosure sales or the review of
BAC'’s foreclosure process. However, delays in foreclosure sales could negatively affect the valuation of
BAC’s real estate owned properties and MBS that are serviced by BAC. With respect to GSE MBS,
while there would be no credit impairment to security holders due to the guarantee provided by the
agencies, the valuation of certain MBS could be negatively affected under certain scenarios due to
changes in the timing of cash flows. The impact on GSE MBS depends on, among other factors, how long
the underlying loans are affected by foreclosure delays and would vary among securities. With respect to
non-GSE MBS, under certain scenarios the timing and amount of cash flows could be negatively affected.
The ultimate impact on non-GSE MBS depends on the same factors that impact GSE MBS, as well as the
level of credit enhancement, including subordination. In addition, as a result of BAC’s foreclosure
process assessment and related control enhancements that BAC has implemented, there may continue to
be delays in foreclosure sales, including a continued backlog of foreclosure proceedings, and evictions
from real estate owned properties.

BAC’s failure to satisfy its obligations as servicer in the residential mortgage securitisation process,
including obligations related to residential mortgage foreclosure actions, along with other losses BAC
could incur in its capacity as servicer, could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition and
results of operations.

BAC and its legacy companies have securitised, and continue to securitise, a significant portion of the
residential mortgage loans that they have originated or acquired. BAC services a large portion of the
loans it or its subsidiaries have securitised and also services loans on behalf of third-party securitisation
vehicles. In addition to identifying specific servicing criteria, pooling and servicing arrangements entered
into in connection with a securitisation or whole loan sale typically impose standards of care on the
servicer, with respect to its activities, that may include the obligation to adhere to the accepted servicing
practices of prudent mortgage lenders and/or to exercise the degree of care and skill that the servicer
employs when servicing loans for its own account. Many non-GSE residential mortgage-backed
securitisations and whole loan servicing agreements also require the servicer to indemnify the trustee or
other investor for or against failures by the servicer to perform its servicing obligations or acts or
omissions that involve wilful malfeasance, bad faith, or gross negligence in the performance of, or reckless
disregard of, the servicer’s duties.

Servicing agreements with the GSEs generally provide the GSEs with broader rights relative to the
servicer than are found in servicing agreements with private investors. For example, each GSE typically
has the right to demand that the servicer repurchase loans that breach the seller’s representations and
warranties made in connection with the initial sale of the loans, even if the servicer was not the seller. The
GSEs also reserve the contractual right to demand indemnification or loan repurchase for certain
servicing breaches. In addition, BAC’s agreements with the GSEs and their first mortgage seller/servicer
guides provide for timelines to resolve delinquent loans through workout efforts or liquidation, if
necessary.

With regard to alleged irregularities in foreclosure process-related activities referred to above, a servicer
may incur costs or losses if the servicer elects or is required to re-execute or re-file documents or take
other action in its capacity as a servicer in connection with pending or completed foreclosures. The
servicer also may incur costs or losses if the validity of a foreclosure action is challenged by a borrower. If
a court were to overturn a foreclosure because of errors or deficiencies in the foreclosure process, the
servicer may have liability to a title insurer of the property sold in foreclosure. These costs and liabilities
may not be reimbursable to the servicer. A servicer may also incur costs or losses associated with private-
label securitisations or other loan investors relating to delays or alleged deficiencies in processing
documents necessary to comply with state law governing foreclosures.

The servicer may be subject to deductions by insurers for mortgage insurance or guarantee benefits
relating to delays or alleged deficiencies. Additionally, if the servicer commits a material breach of its
servicing obligations that is not cured within specified timeframes, including those related to default
servicing and foreclosure, it could be terminated as servicer under servicing agreements under certain
circumstances. Any of these actions may harm the servicer’s reputation, increase its servicing costs or
otherwise adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

Mortgage notes, assignments or other documents are often required to be maintained and are often
necessary to enforce mortgages loans. There has been significant public commentary regarding the
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common industry practice of recording mortgages in the name of Mortgage Electronic Registration
Systems, Inc. (“MERS”’), as nominee on behalf of the note holder, and whether securitisation trusts own
the loans purported to be conveyed to them and have valid liens securing those loans. BAC currently uses
the MERS system for a substantial portion of the residential mortgage loans that it originates, including
loans that have been sold to investors or securitisation trusts. Additionally, certain legal challenges have
been made to the process for transferring mortgage loans to securitisation trusts, asserting that having a
mortgagee of record that is different than the holder of the mortgage note could “‘break the chain of title”
and cloud the ownership of the loan. In order to foreclose on a mortgage loan, in certain cases it may be
necessary or prudent for an assignment of the mortgage to be made to the holder of the note, which in the
case of a mortgage held in the name of MERS as nominee would need to be completed by MERS. As
such, BAC’s practice is to obtain assignments of mortgages from MERS prior to instituting foreclosure. If
certain required documents are missing or defective, or if the use of MERS is found not to be effective,
BAC could be obligated to cure certain defects or in some circumstances be subject to additional costs
and expenses, which could have a material adverse effect on BAC’s cash flows, financial condition and
results of operations.

BAC may also face negative reputational costs from these servicing risks, which could reduce its future
business opportunities in this area or cause that business to be on less favourable terms to BAC.

For additional information concerning BAC’s servicing risks, see Recent Events — Certain Servicing-
related Issues in the MD&A beginning on page 34 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the Risk of Loss Arising from a Borrower, Obligor or Counterparty Default when a
Borrower, Obligor or Counterparty does not Meet its Obligations.

Increased credit risk, due to economic or market disruptions, insufficient credit loss reserves or
concentration of credit risk, may necessitate increased provisions for credit losses and could have an
adverse effect on BAC’s financial condition and results of operations.

When BAC loans money, commits to loan money or enters into a letter of credit or other contract with a
counterparty, it incurs credit risk, or the risk of losses if its borrowers do not repay their loans or its
counterparties fail to perform according to the terms of their agreements. A number of BAC’s products
expose it to credit risk, including loans, leases and lending commitments, derivatives, trading account
assets and assets held-for-sale. As one of the United States’ largest lenders, the credit quality of BAC’s
consumer and commercial portfolios has a significant impact on its earnings.

Although credit quality generally continued to show improvement throughout 2010, net charge-offs,
nonperforming loans, leases and foreclosed properties remained elevated. Global and national economic
conditions continue to weigh on BAC’s credit portfolios. Economic or market disruptions are likely to
increase BAC’s credit exposure to customers, obligors or other counterparties due to the increased risk
that they may default on their obligations to BAC. These potential increases in delinquencies and default
rates could adversely affect BAC’s consumer credit card, home equity, consumer real estate and
purchased credit-impaired portfolios, through increased charge-offs and provisions for credit losses. In
addition, this increased credit risk could also adversely affect BAC’s commercial loan portfolios where
BAC has experienced continued losses, particularly in its commercial real estate portfolios, reflecting
broad-based stress across industries, property types and borrowers.

BAC estimates and establishes an allowance for credit risks and credit losses inherent in its lending
activities (including unfunded lending commitments), excluding those measured at fair value, through a
charge to earnings. The amount of allowance is determined based on BAC’s evaluation of the potential
credit losses included within its loan portfolio. The process for determining the amount of the allowance,
which is critical to BAC’s operating results and financial condition, requires difficult, subjective and
complex judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how BAC’s borrowers will react to
those conditions. BAC’s ability to assess future economic conditions or the creditworthiness of its
customers, obligors or other counterparties is imperfect. The ability of BAC’s borrowers to repay their
loans will likely be impacted by changes in economic conditions, which in turn could impact the accuracy
of BAC’s forecasts. As with any such assessments, there is also the chance that BAC will fail to identify
the proper factors or that it will fail to accurately estimate the impacts of factors that it identifies. In
addition, BAC may underestimate the credit losses in its loan portfolios and suffer unexpected losses if
the models and approaches BAC uses to establish reserves and make judgments in extending credit to its
borrowers and other counterparties become less predictive of future behaviours, valuations, assumptions
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or estimates. Although BAC believes that its allowance for credit losses was in compliance with
applicable standards at 31 December 2010, there is no guarantee that it will be sufficient to address future
credit losses, particularly if economic conditions worsen. In such an event, BAC may need to increase the
size of its allowance in 2011, which would adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

In the ordinary course of BAC’s business, it also may be subject to a concentration of credit risk to a
particular industry, country, counterparty, borrower or issuer. A deterioration in the financial condition
or prospects of a particular industry or a failure or downgrade of, or default by, any particular entity or
group of entities could have a material adverse impact on BAC’s businesses, and the processes by which
BAC sets limits and monitors the level of its credit exposure to individual entities, industries and
countries may not function as it has anticipated. While BAC’s activities expose it to many different
industries and counterparties, BAC routinely executes a high volume of transactions with counterparties
in the financial services industry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment funds and
insurers. This has resulted in significant credit concentration with respect to this industry.

In the ordinary course of business, BAC also enters into transactions with sovereign nations, U.S. states
and U.S. municipalities. Unfavourable economic or political conditions, disruptions to capital markets,
currency fluctuations, social instability and changes in government policies could impact the operating
budgets or credit ratings of sovereign nations, U.S. states and U.S. municipalities and expose BAC to
credit risk.

BAC also has a concentration of credit risk with respect to its consumer real estate, consumer credit card
and commercial real estate portfolios, which represent a large percentage of BAC’s overall credit
portfolio. The economic downturn has adversely affected these portfolios and further exposed BAC to
this concentration of risk. Continued economic weakness or deterioration in real estate values or
household incomes could result in materially higher credit losses.

For additional information about BAC’s credit risk and credit risk management policies and procedures,
see Credit Risk Management in the MD&A beginning on page 71 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report and
Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
BAC 2010 Annual Report.

BAC could suffer losses as a result of the actions of or deterioration in the commercial soundness of its
counterparties and other financial services institutions.

BACs ability to engage in routine trading and funding transactions could be adversely affected by the
actions and commercial soundness of other market participants. BAC has exposure to many different
industries and counterparties, and it routinely executes transactions with counterparties in the financial
services industry, including brokers and dealers, commercial banks, investment banks, mutual and hedge
funds and other institutional clients. Financial services institutions and other counterparties are inter-
related because of trading, funding, clearing or other relationships. As a result, defaults by, or even
rumours or questions about, one or more financial services institutions, or the financial services industry
generally, have led to market-wide liquidity problems and could lead to significant future liquidity
problems, including losses or defaults by BAC or by other institutions. Many of these transactions expose
BAC to credit risk in the event of default of a counterparty or client. In addition, BAC’s credit risk may
be impacted when the collateral held by it cannot be realised or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to
recover the full amount of the loan or derivatives exposure due to BAC. Any such losses could materially
adversely affect BAC’s financial condition and results of operations.

BAC’s derivatives businesses may expose it to unexpected risks and potential losses.

BAC is party to a large number of derivatives transactions, including credit derivatives. BAC’s
derivatives businesses may expose it to unexpected market, credit and operational risks that could cause
it to suffer unexpected losses and have an adverse effect on its financial condition and results of
operations. Severe declines in asset values, unanticipated credit events or unforeseen circumstances that
may cause previously uncorrelated factors to become correlated (and vice versa) may create losses
resulting from risks not appropriately taken into account in the development, structuring or pricing of a
derivative instrument.

Many derivative instruments are individually negotiated and non-standardised, which can make exiting,
transferring or settling some positions difficult. Many derivatives require that BAC deliver to the
counterparty the underlying security, loan or other obligation in order to receive payment. In a number of
cases, BAC does not hold, and may not be able to obtain, the underlying security, loan or other
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obligation. This could cause BAC to forfeit the payments due to it under these contracts or result in
settlement delays with the attendant credit and operational risk, as well as increased costs to BAC.

Derivatives contracts and other transactions entered into with third parties are not always confirmed by
the counterparties or settled on a timely basis. While a transaction remains unconfirmed or during any
delay in settlement, BAC is subject to heightened credit and operational risk and in the event of default
may find it more difficult to enforce the contract. In addition, as new and more complex derivatives
products have been created, covering a wider array of underlying credit and other instruments, disputes
about the terms of the underlying contracts may arise, which could impair BAC’s ability to effectively
manage its risk exposures from these products and subject it to increased costs.

For a further discussion of BAC’s derivatives exposure, see Note 4 — Derivatives to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Market Risk

Market Risk is the Risk That Values of Assets and Liabilities or Revenues will be Adversely Affected by
Changes in Market Conditions such as Market Volatility. Market Risk is Inherent in the Financial
Instruments Associated with BAC’s Operations and Activities, Including Loans, Deposits, Securities,
Short-Term Borrowings, Long-Term Debt, Trading Account Assets and Liabilities, and Derivatives.

BAC’s businesses and results of operations have been, and may continue to be, significantly adversely
affected by changes in the levels of market volatility and by other financial or capital market conditions.

BAC’s businesses and results of operations may be adversely affected by market risk factors such as
changes in interest and currency exchange rates, equity and futures prices, the implied volatility of
interest rates, credit spreads and other economic and business factors. These market risks may adversely
affect, for example, (i) the value of BAC’s on and off-balance sheet securities, trading assets, other
financial instruments, and MSRs, (ii) the cost of debt capital and BAC’s access to credit markets, (iii) the
value of assets under management, which could reduce BAC’s fee income relating to those assets, (iv)
customer allocation of capital among investment alternatives, (v) the volume of client activity in BAC’s
trading operations, and (vi) the general profitability and risk level of the transactions in which BAC
engages. Any of these developments could have a significant adverse impact on BAC’s financial condition
and results of operations.

BAC uses various models and strategies to assess and control its market risk exposures but those are
subject to inherent limitations. For example, BAC’s models, which rely on historical trends and
assumptions, may not be sufficiently predictive of future results due to limited historical patterns, extreme
or unanticipated market movements and illiquidity, especially during severe market downturns or stress
events. The models that BAC uses to assess and control its market risk exposures also reflect assumptions
about the degree of correlation or lack thereof among prices of various asset classes or other market
indicators. In times of market stress or other unforeseen circumstances, such as the market conditions
experienced in 2008 and 2009, previously uncorrelated indicators may become correlated, or previously
correlated indicators may move in different directions. These types of market movements have at times
limited the effectiveness of BAC’s hedging strategies and have caused it to incur significant losses, and
they may do so in the future. These changes in correlation can be exacerbated where other market
participants are using risk or trading models with assumptions or algorithms that are similar to BAC’s. In
these and other cases, it may be difficult to reduce BAC’s risk positions due to the activity of other
market participants or widespread market dislocations, including circumstances where asset values are
declining significantly or no market exists for certain assets. To the extent that BAC makes investments
directly in securities that do not have an established liquid trading market or are otherwise subject to
restrictions on sale or hedging, it may not be able to reduce its positions and therefore reduce BAC’s risk
associated with such positions.

For additional information about market risk and BAC’s market risk management policies and
procedures, see Market Risk Management in the MD&A beginning on page 100 of the BAC 2010
Annual Report.

Declines in the value of certain of BAC’s assets could have an adverse effect on its results of operations.

BAC has a large portfolio of financial instruments that it measures at fair value including, among others,
certain corporate loans and loan commitments, loans held-for-sale, repurchase agreements and long-term
deposits. BAC also has trading account assets and liabilities, derivatives assets and liabilities, available-
for-sale debt and marketable equity securities, consumer-related MSRs and certain other assets that are
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valued at fair value. BAC determines the fair values of these instruments based on the fair value
hierarchy under applicable accounting guidance. The fair values of these financial instruments include
adjustments for market liquidity, credit quality and other transaction specific factors, where appropriate.

Gains or losses on these instruments can have a direct and significant impact on BAC’s results of
operations, unless it has effectively “‘hedged” its exposures. For example, changes in interest rates, among
other things, can impact the value of BAC’s MSRs and can result in substantially higher or lower
mortgage banking income and earnings, depending upon BAC'’s ability to fully hedge the performance of
its MSRs. Fair values may be impacted by declining values of the underlying assets or the prices at which
observable market transactions occur and the continued availability of these transactions. The financial
strength of counterparties, such as monolines, with whom BAC has economically hedged some of its
exposure to these assets, also will affect the fair value of these assets. Sudden declines and significant
volatility in the prices of assets may substantially curtail or eliminate the trading activity for these assets,
which may make it very difficult to sell, hedge or value such assets. The inability to sell or effectively
hedge assets reduces BAC’s ability to limit losses in such positions and the difficulty in valuing assets may
increase BAC’s risk-weighted assets, which requires BAC to maintain additional capital and increases its
funding costs.

Asset values also directly impact revenues in BAC’s asset management businesses. BAC receives asset-
based management fees based on the value of its clients’ portfolios or investments in funds managed by it
and, in some cases, BAC also receives incentive fees based on increases in the value of such investments.
Declines in asset values can reduce the value of BAC’s clients’ portfolios or fund assets, which in turn can
result in lower fees earned for managing such assets.

For additional information about fair value measurements, see Note 22 — Fair Value Measurements to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the BAC 2010 Annual Report. For additional information
about BAC’s asset management businesses, see Business Segment Operations — Global Wealth &
Investment Management in the MD&A beginning on page 48 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

BAC’s commodities activities, particularly its physical commodities business, subject it to performance,
environmental and other risks that may result in significant cost and liabilities.

As part of BAC’s commodities business, it enters into exchange-traded contracts, financially settled OTC
derivatives, contracts for physical delivery and contracts providing for the transportation, transmission
and/or storage rights on or in vessels, barges, pipelines, transmission lines or storage facilities.
Commodity, related storage, transportation or other contracts expose BAC to the risk that the price of
the underlying commodity or the cost of storing or transporting commodities may rise or fall. In addition,
contracts relating to physical ownership and/or delivery can expose BAC to numerous other risks,
including performance and environmental risks. For example, BAC’s counterparties may not be able to
pass changes in the price of commodities to their customers and therefore may not be able to meet their
performance obligations. BAC’s actions to mitigate the aforementioned risks may not prove adequate to
address every contingency. In addition, insurance covering some of these risks may not be available, and
the proceeds, if any, from insurance recovery may not be adequate to cover liabilities with respect to
particular incidents. As a result, BAC’s financial condition and results of operations may be adversely
affected by such events.

Regulatory and legal risk

Bank regulatory agencies may require BAC to hold higher levels of regulatory capital, increase its
regulatory capital ratios, or increase liquidity which could result in the need to issue additional
securities that qualify as regulatory capital or to liquidate company assets.

BAC is subject to the risk-based capital guidelines issued by the Board of Governors of the U.S. Federal
Reserve System (the “Federal Reserve Board”). These guidelines establish regulatory capital
requirements for banking institutions to meet minimal requirements as well as to qualify as a “well-
capitalised” institution. (A “well-capitalised” institution must generally maintain capital ratios 200 basis
points higher than the minimum guidelines.) The risk-based capital rules have been further supplemented
by required leverage ratios, defined as so-called Tier 1 (the highest grade) capital divided by quarterly
average total assets, after certain adjustments. If any of BAC’s insured depository institutions fails to
maintain its status as ‘“‘well- capitalised”” under the capital rules of their primary federal regulator, the
Federal Reserve Board will require BAC to enter into an agreement to bring the insured depository
institution or institutions back into a ““well-capitalised” status. For the duration of such an agreement, the
Federal Reserve Board may impose restrictions on the activities in which BAC may engage. If BAC were
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to fail to enter into such an agreement, or fail to comply with the terms of such agreement, the Federal
Reserve Board may impose more severe restrictions on the activities in which BAC may engage,
including requiring BAC to cease and desist in activities permitted under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act.

It is possible that in the future increases in regulatory capital requirements, changes in how regulatory
capital is calculated or increases to liquidity requirements, may cause the loss of BAC’s ““well-capitalised”
status unless BAC increases its capital levels by issuing additional common stock, thus diluting its existing
shareholders, or by selling assets. For example, the Financial Reform Act includes a provision under
which BAC’s previously issued and outstanding trust preferred securities will no longer qualify as Tier 1
capital effective 1 January 2013. The exclusion of trust preferred securities from Tier 1 capital will be
phased in incrementally over a three-year phase-in period. The treatment of trust preferred securities
during the phase-in period remains unclear and is subject to future rulemaking.

On 16 December 2010, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (the ‘“Basel Committee”) issued
“Basel III: A global regulatory framework for more resilient banks and banking systems” (‘‘Basel III"),
proposing a January 2013 implementation date for Basel III. If implemented by U.S. regulators as
proposed, Basel III could significantly increase BAC’s capital requirements. Basel III and the Financial
Reform Act propose the disqualification of trust preferred securities from Tier 1 capital, with the
Financial Reform Act proposing that the disqualification be phased in from 2013 to 2015. Basel III also
proposes the deduction of certain assets from capital (deferred tax assets, MSRs, investments in financial
firms and pension assets, among others, within prescribed limitations), the inclusion of other
comprehensive income in capital, increased capital for counterparty credit risk, and new minimum
capital and buffer requirements. U.S. regulators are expected to begin the final rulemaking processes for
Basel III in early 2011 and have indicated a goal to adopt final rules by year-end 2011 or early 2012. In
addition to the capital proposals, in December 2010 the Basel Committee proposed two measures of
liquidity risk. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio identifies the amount of unencumbered, high quality liquid
assets a financial institution holds that can be used to offset the net cash outflows the institution would
encounter under an acute 30-day stress scenario. The Net Stable Funding Ratio measures the amount of
longer-term, stable sources of funding employed by a financial institution relative to the liquidity profiles
of the assets funded and the potential for contingent calls on funding liquidity arising from off-balance
sheet commitments and obligations, over a one-year period. The Basel Committee expects the Liquidity
Coverage Ratio to be implemented in January 2015 and the Net Stable Funding Ratio to be implemented
in January 2018, following observation periods beginning in 2012.

Any requirement that BAC increase its regulatory capital, regulatory capital ratios or liquidity could have
a material adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations, as it may need to liquidate
certain assets, perhaps on terms unfavourable to BAC and contrary to its business plans. Such a
requirement could also compel BAC to issue additional securities, which could dilute its current common
stockholders. For additional information about the proposals described above and their potential effect
on BAC’s required levels of regulatory capital, see Item 1. Business — Capital and Operational
Requirements on page 5 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report and Capital Management — Regulatory Capital
in the MD&A beginning on page 63 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report and Capital Management —
Regulatory Capital on page 54 of the BAC 31 March 2011 Quarterly Report.

Government measures to regulate the financial industry, including the Financial Reform Act, either
individually, in combination or in the aggregate, could require BAC to change certain of its business
practices, impose significant additional costs on it, limit the products that it offers, limit its ability to
pursue business opportunities in an efficient manner, require it to increase its regulatory capital, impact
the value of assets that it holds, significantly reduce its revenues or otherwise materially and adversely
affect its businesses, financial condition or results of operations.

As a financial institution, BAC is heavily regulated at the state, federal and international levels. As a
result of the financial crisis and related global economic downturn that began in 2007, BAC has faced and
expects to continue to face increased public and legislative scrutiny as well as stricter and more
comprehensive regulation of its financial services practices. These regulatory and legislative measures,
either individually, in combination or in the aggregate, could require BAC to change certain of its
business practices, impose significant additional costs on it, limit the products that its offers, limit its
ability to pursue business opportunities in an efficient manner, require it to increase its regulatory capital,
impact the value of assets that it holds, significantly reduce its revenues or otherwise materially and
adversely affect its businesses, financial condition, or results of operations.
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Throughout 2009 and 2010, several major regulatory and legislative initiatives were adopted that will
have significant future impacts on BAC’s businesses and financial results. For example, in November
2009, the Federal Reserve Board issued amendments to Regulation E, which implements the Electronic
Fund Transfer Act. The rules became effective on 1 July 2010 for new customers and 16 August 2010 for
existing customers. These amendments limit the way BAC and other banks charge an overdraft fee for
non-recurring debit card transactions that overdraw a consumer’s account unless the consumer
affirmatively consents to the bank’s payment of overdrafts for those transactions. In addition, in May
2009, the Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disclosure (“CARD”’) Act of 2009 was signed
into law. The majority of the CARD Act provisions became effective in February 2010. The CARD Act
legislation contains comprehensive credit card reform related to credit card industry practices, including
significantly restricting banks’ ability to change interest rates and assess fees to reflect individual
consumer risk, changing the way payments are applied and requiring changes to consumer credit card
disclosures. Complying with the Regulation E amendments and the CARD Act has required BAC to
invest significant management attention and resources to make the necessary disclosure and systems
changes and has adversely affected, and will likely continue to adversely affect, BAC’s earnings.

In July 2010, the Financial Reform Act was signed into law. The Financial Reform Act, among other
reforms, (i) mandates that the Federal Reserve Board limit debit card interchange fees; (ii) bans banking
organisations from engaging in proprietary trading and restricts their sponsorship of, or investing in,
hedge funds and private equity funds, subject to limited exceptions; (iii) increases regulation of the over-
the-counter derivative markets through measures that broaden the derivative instruments subject to
regulation, requiring clearing and exchange trading and imposing additional capital and margin
requirements for derivative market participants; (iv) changes the assessment base used in calculating the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (‘“FDIC”) deposit insurance fees from assessable deposits to
total assets less tangible capital; (v) provides for heightened capital, liquidity, and prudential regulation
and supervision over systemically important financial institutions; (vi) provides for resolution authority to
establish a process to unwind large systemically important financial companies; (vii) creates a new
regulatory body to set requirements around the terms and conditions of consumer financial products and
expands the role of state regulators in enforcing consumer protection requirements over banks; (viii)
disqualifies trust preferred securities and other hybrid capital securities from Tier 1 capital; (ix) includes a
variety of corporate governance and executive compensation provisions and requirements; and (X)
requires securitisers to retain a portion of the risk that would otherwise be transferred into certain
securitisation transactions.

Many of these provisions have begun to be or will be phased in over the next several months or years and
will be subject both to further rulemaking and the discretion of applicable regulatory bodies. The ultimate
impact of the final rules on BAC’s businesses and results of operations will depend on regulatory
interpretation and rulemaking, as well as the success of any of BAC’s actions to mitigate the negative
earnings impact of certain provisions. For instance, in December 2010, the Federal Reserve Board
requested comment on a proposed rule that would establish debit card interchange fee standards and
prohibit network exclusivity arrangements and routing restrictions. The proposed rule would establish
standards for determining whether a debit card interchange fee received by a card issuer is reasonable
and proportional to the cost incurred by the issuer for the transaction. Depending upon which cap is
ultimately adopted, the final rule could have a significant adverse effect on BAC'’s financial condition and
results of operations and could result in additional goodwill impairment charges within BAC’s Global
Card Services business segment.

BAC also anticipates that the final regulations associated with the Financial Reform Act will include
limitations on certain activities, including limitations on the use of a bank’s own capital for proprietary
trading and sponsorship or investment in hedge funds and private equity funds (the “Volcker Rule”).
Regulations implementing the Volcker Rule are required to be in place by 21 October 2011, and the
Volcker Rule becomes effective 12 months after such rules are final or on 21 July 2012, whichever is
earlier. The Volcker Rule then gives banking entities two years from the effective date (with
opportunities for additional extensions) to bring activities and investments into conformance. In
anticipation of the adoption of the final regulations, BAC has begun winding down its proprietary trading
line of business. The ultimate impact of the Volcker Rule or the winding down of this business, and the
time it will take to comply or complete, continues to remain uncertain. The final regulations issued may
impose additional operational and compliance costs on BAC.

Additionally, the Financial Reform Act includes measures to broaden the scope of derivative instruments
subject to regulation by requiring clearing and exchange trading of certain derivatives, imposing new
capital and margin requirements for certain market participants and imposing position limits on certain
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over-the-counter derivatives. The Financial Reform Act grants the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (““CFTC”’) and the SEC substantial new authority and requires numerous rulemakings by
these agencies. Generally, the CFTC and SEC have until 16 July 2011 to promulgate the rulemakings
necessary to implement these regulations. The ultimate impact of these derivatives regulations, and the
time it will take to comply, continues to remain uncertain. The final regulations will impose additional
operational and compliance costs on BAC and may require it to restructure certain businesses and
negatively impact its revenues and results of operations.

The Financial Reform Act provided for a new resolution authority to establish a process to unwind large
systemically important financial institutions. As part of that process, BAC will be required to develop and
implement a recovery and resolution plan which will be subject to review by the FDIC and the Federal
Reserve Board to determine whether BAC’s plan is credible and viable. As a result of FDIC and Federal
Reserve Board review, BAC could be required to take certain actions over the next several years which
could impose operational costs and could potentially result in the divestiture or restructuring of certain
businesses and subsidiaries.

Although BAC cannot predict the full effect of the Financial Reform Act on its operations, the Financial
Reform Act, as well as the future rules implementing its reforms, could result in a significant loss of
revenue, impose additional costs on BAC, require BAC to increase its regulatory capital or otherwise
materially adversely affect BAC’s businesses, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, the U.S. Congress and the U.S. federal government administration have signalled growing
interest in reforming the U.S. corporate income tax. While the timing of consideration of such legislative
reform is unclear, possible approaches include lowering the 35% corporate tax rate, modifying the
taxation of income earned outside of the U.S. and limiting or eliminating various other deductions, tax
credits and/or other tax preferences. It is not possible at this time to quantify either the one-time impact
from re-measuring deferred tax assets and liabilities that might result upon enactment of tax reform or
the ongoing impact reform might have on income tax expense, but it is possible either of these impacts
could adversely affect BAC’s financial condition and results of operations.

Other countries have also proposed and, in some cases, adopted certain regulatory changes targeted at
financial institutions or that otherwise affect BAC. For example, the European Union has adopted
increased capital requirements and the U.K. has (i) increased liquidity requirements for local financial
institutions, including regulated U.K. subsidiaries of non-U.K. bank holding companies and other
financial institutions as well as branches of non-U.K. banks located in the U.K.; (ii) adopted a Bank Tax
Levy which will apply to the aggregate balance sheet of branches and subsidiaries of non-U.K. banks and
banking groups operating in the U.K.; (iii) proposed the creation and production of recovery and
resolution plans (commonly referred to as living wills) by U.K. regulated entities; and (iv) announced the
expectation of corporate income tax rate reductions of one percent to be enacted during each of 2011,
2012 and 2013 that would favourably impact income tax expense on future earnings but which would
result in adjustments to the carrying value of deferred tax assets and related one-time charges to income
tax expenses of nearly $400 million for each one percent reduction (however, it is possible that the full
three percent rate reductions could be enacted in 2011, which would result in a 2011 charge of
approximately $1.1 billion). BAC is also monitoring other international legislative proposals that could
materially impact it, such as changes to income tax laws. Currently, in the U.K., net operating loss carry
forwards (“INOLs”’) have an indefinite life. Were the U.K. taxing authorities to introduce limitations on
the future utilisation of NOLs and BAC was unable to document its continued ability to fully utilise its
NOLs, it would be required to establish a valuation allowance by a charge to income tax expense.
Depending upon the nature of the limitations, such a change could be material in the period of
enactment. In addition, in 2010 the U.K. Financial Services Authority (‘“FSA”") issued a policy statement
regarding payment protection insurance (‘“‘PPI”) that requires companies to review their sales practices
and to proactively remediate certain problems, if discovered. As a result of this review, BAC may be
required to record additional liabilities.

For additional information about the regulatory initiatives discussed above, see Regulatory Matters in the
MD&A beginning on page 56 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report. For additional information about PPI,
see Note 14 — Commitments and Contingencies — Payment Protection Insurance Claims Matter to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

During the last ten years, BAC and its subsidiaries and legacy companies have sold over $2.0 trillion of
loans to the GSEs. Each GSE is currently in a conservatorship, with its primary regulator, the Federal
Housing Finance Agency, acting as conservator. BAC cannot predict if, when or how the
conservatorships will end, or any associated changes to the GSEs’ business structure that could result.
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BAC also cannot predict whether the conservatorships will end in receivership. There are several
proposed approaches to reform the GSEs which, if enacted, could change the structure of the GSEs and
the relationship among the GSEs, the government, and the private markets. BAC expects dialogue
concerning GSE reform to continue and additional proposals to be advanced. BAC cannot predict the
prospects for the enactment, timing or content of legislative or rulemaking proposals regarding the future
status of the GSEs. Accordingly, there continues to be uncertainty regarding the future of the GSEs,
including whether they will continue to exist in their current form. GSE reform, if enacted, could result in
a significant change to the business operations of Consumer Real Estate Services.

Finally, since the financial crisis began several years ago, an increasing number of bank failures has
imposed significant costs on FDIC in resolving those failures, and the regulator’s deposit insurance fund
has been depleted. In order to maintain a strong funding position and restore reserve ratios of the deposit
insurance fund, the FDIC has increased, and may increase in the future, assessment rates of insured
institutions, including BAC.

Deposits placed at BAC’s U.S. banking subsidiaries (the “U.S. Banks”) are insured by the FDIC, subject
to limits and conditions of applicable law and the FDIC’s regulations. Pursuant to the Financial Reform
Act, FDIC insurance coverage limits were permanently increased to $250,000 per customer. The
Financial Reform Act also provides for unlimited FDIC insurance coverage for non-interest bearing
demand deposit accounts for a two-year period beginning on 31 December 2010 and ending on 1 January
2013. The FDIC administers the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”’), and all insured depository institutions
are required to pay assessments to the FDIC that fund the DIF. The Financial Reform Act changed the
methodology for calculating deposit insurance assessments from the amount of an insured depository
institution’s domestic deposits to its total assets minus tangible capital. On 7 February 2011 the FDIC
issued a new regulation implementing revisions to the assessment system mandated by the Financial
Reform Act. The new regulation was effective 1 April 2011 and will be reflected in the 30 June 2011
FDIC fund balance and the invoices for assessments due 30 September 2011. As a result of the new
regulations, BAC expects to incur higher annual deposit insurance assessments. BAC has identified
potential mitigation actions, but they are in the early stages of development and BAC is not able to
directly control the basis or the amount of premiums that it is required to pay for FDIC insurance or for
other fees or assessment obligations imposed on financial institutions. Any future increases in required
deposit insurance premiums or other bank industry fees could have a significant adverse impact on BAC’s
financial condition and results of operations.

BAC faces substantial potential legal liability and significant regulatory action, which could have
material adverse effects on its cash flows, financial condition and results of operations, or cause
significant reputational harm to BAC.

BAC faces significant legal risks in its businesses, and the volume of claims and amount of damages and
penalties claimed in litigation and regulatory proceedings against it and other financial institutions remain
high and are increasing. Increased litigation costs, substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action
against BAC could have material adverse effects on its financial condition and results of operations or
cause significant reputational harm to it, which in turn could adversely impact BAC’s business prospects.
In addition, BAC continues to face increased litigation risk and regulatory scrutiny as a result of the
Countrywide and Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. (“ML&Co.”) acquisitions. As a result of ongoing challenging
economic conditions and the increased level of defaults over recent years, BAC has continued to
experience increased litigation and other disputes with counterparties regarding relative rights and
responsibilities. These litigation and regulatory matters and any related settlements could have a material
adverse effect on BAC’s cash flows, financial condition and results of operations. They could also
negatively impact BAC’s reputation and lead to volatility of its stock price. For a further discussion of
litigation risks, see Note 14 — Commitments and Contingencies to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Changes in governmental fiscal and monetary policy could adversely affect BAC’s financial condition
and results of operations.

BAC’s businesses and earnings are affected by domestic and international fiscal and monetary policy. For
example, the Federal Reserve Board regulates the supply of money and credit in the United States and its
policies determine in large part BAC’s cost of funds for lending, investing and capital raising activities
and the return it earns on those loans and investments, both of which affect its net interest margin. The
actions of the Federal Reserve Board also can materially affect the value of financial instruments BAC
holds, such as debt securities and MSRs, and its policies also can affect BAC’s borrowers, potentially
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increasing the risk that they may fail to repay their loans. BAC’s businesses and earnings are also affected
by the fiscal or other policies that are adopted by various U.S. regulatory authorities, non-U.S.
governments and international agencies. Changes in domestic and international fiscal and monetary
policies are beyond BAC’s control and difficult to predict but could have an adverse impact on its capital
requirements and the costs of running its businesses, in turn adversely impacting its financial condition
and results of operations.

Risk of the competitive environment in which BAC operates
BAC faces significant and increasing competition in the financial services industry.

BAC operates in a highly competitive environment. Over time, there has been substantial consolidation
among companies in the financial services industry, and this trend accelerated in recent years as the credit
crisis led to numerous mergers and asset acquisitions among industry participants and in certain cases
reorganisation, restructuring, or even bankruptcy. This trend has also hastened the globalisation of the
securities and financial services markets. BAC will continue to experience intensified competition as
further consolidation in the financial services industry in connection with current market conditions may
produce larger, better-capitalised and more geographically diverse companies that are capable of offering
a wider array of financial products and services at more competitive prices. To the extent BAC expands
into new business areas and new geographic regions, it may face competitors with more experience and
more established relationships with clients, regulators and industry participants in the relevant market,
which could adversely affect its ability to compete. In addition, technological advances and the growth of
e-commerce have made it possible for non-depository institutions to offer products and services that
traditionally were banking products, and for financial institutions to compete with technology companies
in providing electronic and internet-based financial solutions. Increased competition may negatively
affect BAC’s results of operations by creating pressure to lower prices on its products and services and
reducing market share.

Damage to BAC’s reputation could significantly harm its businesses, including its competitive position
and business prospects.

BAC’s ability to attract and retain investors, customers, clients and employees could be adversely
affected to the extent its reputation is damaged. Significant harm to BAC’s reputation can arise from
many sources, including employee misconduct, litigation or regulatory outcomes, failing to deliver
minimum standards of service and quality, compliance failures, unethical behaviour, unintended
disclosure of confidential information, and the activities of its clients, customers and counterparties.
Actions by the financial services industry generally or by certain members or individuals in the industry
also can significantly adversely affect BAC’s reputation.

BACs actual or perceived failure to address various issues also could give rise to reputational risk that
could cause significant harm to BAC and its business prospects, including failure to properly address
operational risks. These issues include legal and regulatory requirements, privacy, properly maintaining
customer and associate personal information, record keeping, protecting against money-laundering, sales
and trading practices, ethical issues, and the proper identification of the legal, reputational, credit,
liquidity and market risks inherent in BAC’s products.

BAC could suffer significant reputational harm if it fails to properly identify and manage potential
conflicts of interest. Management of potential conflicts of interests has become increasingly complex as
BAC expands its business activities through more numerous transactions, obligations and interests with
and among its clients. The failure to adequately address, or the perceived failure to adequately address,
conflicts of interest could affect the willingness of clients to deal with BAC, or give rise to litigation or
enforcement actions, which could adversely affect BAC’s businesses.

BAC continues to face increased public and regulatory scrutiny resulting from the financial crisis,
including its foreclosure practices, modifications of mortgages, volume of lending, compensation
practices, its acquisitions of Countrywide and ML&Co., and the suitability of certain trading and
investment businesses. Failure to appropriately address any of these issues could also give rise to
additional regulatory restrictions, legal risks and reputational harm, which could, among other
consequences, increase the size and number of litigation claims and damages asserted or subject BAC
to enforcement actions, fines and penalties and cause it to incur related costs and expenses.
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BAC’s ability to attract and retain qualified employees is critical to the success of its businesses and
Jailure to do so could adversely affect its business prospects, including BAC’s competitive position and
results of operations.

BAC’s performance is heavily dependent on the talents and efforts of highly skilled individuals.
Competition for qualified personnel within the financial services industry and from businesses outside the
financial services industry has been, and is expected to continue to be, intense even during difficult
economic times. BAC’s competitors include non-U.S.-based institutions and institutions otherwise not
subject to compensation and hiring regulations imposed on U.S. institutions and financial institutions in
particular. The difficulty BAC faces in competing for key personnel is exacerbated in emerging markets,
where it is often competing for qualified employees with entities that may have a significantly greater
presence or more extensive experience in the region.

In order to attract and retain qualified personnel, BAC must provide market-level compensation. As a
large financial and banking institution, BAC may be subject to limitations on compensation practices
(which may or may not affect its competitors) by the Federal Reserve Board, the FDIC or other
regulators around the world. Any future limitations on executive compensation imposed by legislators
and regulators could adversely affect BAC’s ability to attract and maintain qualified employees.
Furthermore, a substantial portion of BAC’s annual bonus compensation paid to its senior employees has
in recent years taken the form of long-term equity awards. The value of long-term equity awards to senior
employees generally has been negatively affected by the significant decline in the market price of BAC’s
common stock. If BAC is unable to continue to attract and retain qualified individuals, its business
prospects, including its competitive position and results of operations, could be adversely affected.

BAC’s inability to adapt its products and services to evolving industry standards and consumer
preferences could harm its businesses.

BAC'’s business model is based on a diversified mix of businesses that provide a broad range of financial
products and services, delivered through multiple distribution channels. BAC’s success depends, in part,
on its ability to adapt its products and services to evolving industry standards. There is increasing pressure
by competitors to provide products and services at lower prices. This can reduce BAC’s net interest
margin and revenues from its fee-based products and services. In addition, the widespread adoption of
new technologies, including internet services, could require BAC to incur substantial expenditures to
modify or adapt its existing products and services. BAC might not be successful in developing or
introducing new products and services, responding or adapting to changes in consumer spending and
saving habits, achieving market acceptance of its products and services, or sufficiently developing and
maintaining loyal customers.

Risks related to risk management

BAC’s risk management framework may not be effective in mitigating risk and reducing the potential
for significant losses.

BAC’s risk management framework is designed to minimise risk and loss to it. BAC seeks to identify,
measure, monitor, report and control its exposure to the types of risk to which it is subject, including
strategic, credit, market, liquidity, compliance, fiduciary, operational and reputational risks, among
others. While BAC employs a broad and diversified set of risk monitoring and mitigation techniques,
those techniques are inherently limited because they cannot anticipate the existence or future
development of currently unanticipated or unknown risks. For example, recent economic conditions,
heightened legislative and regulatory scrutiny of the financial services industry and increases in the
overall complexity of BAC’s operations, among other developments, have resulted in the creation of a
variety of previously unanticipated or unknown risks, highlighting the intrinsic limitations of BAC’s risk
monitoring and mitigation techniques. As such, BAC may incur future losses due to the development of
such previously unanticipated or unknown risks.

For additional information about BAC’s risk management policies and procedures, see Managing Risk in
the MD&A beginning on page 59 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.
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A failure in or breach of BAC’s operational or security systems or infrastructure, or those of third
parties, could disrupt BAC’s businesses, result in the disclosure of confidential information or damage
its reputation. Any such failure also could have a significant adverse effect on BAC’s reputation, cash
Sflows, financial condition, and results of operations.

BAC’s businesses are highly dependent on its ability to process and monitor, on a continuous basis, a
large number of transactions, many of which are highly complex, across numerous and diverse markets in
many currencies. The potential for operational risk exposure exists throughout BAC’s organisation,
including losses resulting from unauthorised trades by any employees. Integral to BAC’s performance is
the continued efficacy of its internal processes, systems, relationships with third parties and the vast array
of employees and key executives in its day-to-day and ongoing operations. BAC’s financial, accounting,
data processing or other operating systems and facilities may fail to operate properly or become disabled
as a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond its control and adversely affect its ability to
process these transactions or provide these services. BAC must continuously update these systems to
support its operations and growth. This updating entails significant costs and creates risks associated with
implementing new systems and integrating them with existing ones.

In addition, BAC also faces the risk of operational failure, termination or capacity constraints of any of
the clearing agents, exchanges, clearing houses or other financial intermediaries it uses to facilitate its
securities transactions. In recent years, there has been significant consolidation among clearing agents,
exchanges and clearing houses, which has increased BAC’s exposure to operational failure, termination
or capacity constraints of the particular financial intermediaries that it uses and could affect its ability to
find adequate and cost-effective alternatives in the event of any such failure, termination or constraint.
Industry consolidation, whether among market participants or financial intermediaries, increases the risk
of operational failure as disparate complex systems need to be integrated, often on an accelerated basis.

Furthermore, the interconnectivity of multiple financial institutions with central agents, exchanges and
clearing houses, and the increased centrality of these entities under proposed and potential regulation,
increases the risk that an operational failure at one institution or entity may cause an industry-wide
operational failure that could adversely impact BAC’s own business operations. Any such failure,
termination or constraint could adversely affect BAC’s ability to effect transactions, service its clients,
manage its exposure to risk or expand its businesses and could have a significant adverse impact on
BAC’s liquidity, financial condition, and results of operations.

BAC’s operations rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other
information in its computer systems and networks. Although BAC takes protective measures and
endeavours to modify them as circumstances warrant, the security of its computer systems, software and
networks may be vulnerable to breaches, unauthorised access, misuse, computer viruses or other
malicious code and other events that could have a security impact. Additionally, breaches of security may
occur through intentional or unintentional acts by those having authorised or unauthorised access to
BAC:s or its clients’ or counterparties’ confidential or other information. If one or more of such events
occur, this potentially could jeopardise BAC’s or its clients’ or counterparties’ confidential and other
information processed and stored in, and transmitted through, BAC’s computer systems and networks, or
otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in BAC’s, its clients’, its counterparties’ or third parties’
operations, which could result in significant losses or reputational damage to BAC. BAC may be required
to expend significant additional resources to modify its protective measures or to investigate and
remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures arising from operational and security risks, and BAC may be
subject to litigation and financial losses that are either not insured against or not fully covered through
any insurance maintained by it.

BAC routinely transmits and receives personal, confidential and proprietary information by e-mail and
other electronic means. BAC has discussed and worked with clients, vendors, service providers,
counterparties and other third parties to develop secure transmission capabilities, but it does not have,
and may be unable to put in place, secure capabilities with all of its clients, vendors, service providers,
counterparties and other third parties, and it may not be able to ensure that these third parties have
appropriate controls in place to protect the confidentiality of the information. Any interception, misuse or
mishandling of personal, confidential or proprietary information being sent to or received from a client,
vendor, service provider, counterparty or other third party could result in legal liability, regulatory action
and reputational harm for BAC and could have a significant adverse effect on BAC’s competitive
position, financial condition and results of operations.

With regard to the physical infrastructure that supports its operations, BAC has taken measures to
implement backup systems and other safeguards, but its ability to conduct business may be adversely
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affected by any disruption to that infrastructure. Such disruptions could involve electrical,
communications, internet, transportation or other services used by BAC or third parties with whom
BAC conducts business. These disruptions may occur as a result of events that affect only BAC’s facilities
or those of its clients or other business partners but they could also be the result of events with a broader
impact globally, regionally or in the cities where those facilities are located. The costs associated with
such disruptions, including any loss of business, could have a significant adverse effect on BAC’s results of
operations or financial condition.

Any of these operational and security risks could lead to significant and negative consequences, including
reputational harm as well as loss of customers and business opportunities, which in turn could have a
significant adverse effect on BAC’s businesses, financial condition and results of operations. For a further
discussion of operational risks and BAC’s operational risk management, see Operational Risk
Management in the MD&A beginning on page 106 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Risk related to past acquisitions

Any failure to successfully integrate or otherwise realise the expected benefits from BAC’s recent
acquisitions could adversely affect its results of operations.

There are significant risks and uncertainties associated with mergers and acquisitions. BAC has made
several significant acquisitions in the last several years, including ML&Co. and Countrywide, and the
success of these acquisitions faces numerous challenges. In particular, the success of BAC’s acquisition of
ML&Co. in 2009 will continue to depend, in part, on BAC’s ability to realise the anticipated benefits and
cost savings from combining the businesses of BAC and ML&Co. If BAC is not able to successfully
integrate these businesses, the anticipated benefits and cost savings of the acquisition may not be realised
fully or may take longer to realise than expected. For example, BAC may fail to realise the growth
opportunities and cost savings anticipated to be derived from the acquisition. With regard to any of
BAC’s acquisitions, a significant decline in asset valuations or cash flows may also cause BAC not to
realise expected benefits. These failures could in turn negatively affect BAC’s financial condition,
including adversely impacting the carrying value of the acquisition premium or goodwill. BAC’s ability to
achieve these objectives has also been made more difficult as a result of the substantial challenges that it
is facing in its businesses because of the current economic environment.

In addition, it is possible that the integration process could result in disruption of BAC’s and ML&Co.’s
ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies that adversely affect
BAC’s ability to maintain sufficiently strong relationships with clients, customers, depositors and
employees or to achieve the anticipated benefits of the acquisition. Integration efforts may also divert
management attention and resources. These integration matters could have an adverse effect on BAC for
an undetermined period. BAC will be subject to similar risks and difficulties in connection with any future
acquisitions or decisions to downsize, sell or close units or otherwise change its business mix.

Risk of being an international business

BAC is subject to numerous political, economic, market, reputational, operational, legal, regulatory
and other risks in the non-U.S. jurisdictions in which it operates which could adversely impact its
businesses.

BAC does business throughout the world, including in developing regions of the world commonly known
as emerging markets. BAC’s businesses and revenues derived from non-U.S. jurisdictions are subject to
risk of loss from currency fluctuations, social or judicial instability, changes in governmental policies or
policies of central banks, expropriation, nationalisation and/or confiscation of assets, price controls,
capital controls, exchange controls, other restrictive actions, unfavourable political and diplomatic
developments and changes in legislation. These risks are especially acute in emerging markets. As in the
United States, many non-U.S. jurisdictions in which BAC does business have been negatively impacted
by recessionary conditions. While a number of these jurisdictions are showing signs of recovery, others
continue to experience increasing levels of stress. In addition, the risk of default on sovereign debt in
some non-U.S. jurisdictions is increasing and could expose BAC to substantial losses. Any such
unfavourable conditions or developments could have an adverse impact on BAC’s businesses and results
of operations.

BAC’s non-U.S. businesses are also subject to extensive regulation by various non-U.S. regulators,
including governments, securities exchanges, central banks and other regulatory bodies, in the
jurisdictions in which those businesses operate. In many countries, the laws and regulations applicable
to the financial services and securities industries are uncertain and evolving, and it may be difficult for
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BAC to determine the exact requirements of local laws in every market or manage its relationships with
multiple regulators in various jurisdictions. BAC’s inability to remain in compliance with local laws in a
particular market and manage its relationships with regulators could have a significant and adverse effect
not only on BAC’s businesses in that market but also on its reputation generally.

BAC also invests or trades in the securities of corporations and governments located in non-U.S.
jurisdictions, including emerging markets. Revenues from the trading of non-U.S. securities may be
subject to negative fluctuations as a result of the above factors. Furthermore, the impact of these
fluctuations could be magnified, because non-U.S. trading markets, particularly in emerging market
countries, are generally smaller, less liquid and more volatile than U.S. trading markets.

BAC is subject to geopolitical risks, including acts or threats of terrorism, and actions taken by the U.S. or
other governments in response and/or military conflicts, that could adversely affect business and
economic conditions abroad as well as in the United States.

For a further discussion of BAC’s non-U.S. credit and trading portfolio, see Credit Risk Management —
Non-U.S. Portfolio in the MD&A beginning on page 94 of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Risk from Accounting Changes

Changes in accounting standards or inaccurate estimates or assumptions in the application of
accounting policies could adversely affect BAC’s financial condition and results of operations.

BAC’s accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how it records and reports its financial
condition and results of operations. Some of these policies require use of estimates and assumptions that
may affect the reported value of BAC’s assets or liabilities and results of operations and are critical
because they require management to make difficult, subjective and complex judgments about matters
that are inherently uncertain. If those assumptions, estimates or judgments were incorrectly made, BAC
could be required to correct and restate prior period financial statements.

Accounting standard-setters and those who interpret the accounting standards (such as the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”’), the SEC, banking regulators and BAC’s independent registered
public accounting firm) may also amend or even reverse their previous interpretations or positions on
how various standards should be applied. These changes can be hard to predict and can materially impact
how BAC records and reports its financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, BAC could
be required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in BAC’s needing to revise and
republish prior period financial statements.

For a further discussion of some of BAC’s critical accounting policies and standards and recent
accounting changes, see Complex Accounting Estimates in the MD&A beginning on page 107 of the
BAC 2010 Annual Report and Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the BAC 2010 Annual Report.

Risks relating to Securities generally
Investors risk losing all of their investment in the Securities

Potential investors should be aware that depending on the terms of the relevant Securities (i) they may
receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payments may occur at a different time than expected and
(iii) except in the case of principally protected Securities, they may lose all or a substantial portion of
their investment if the value of the Reference Item(s) does not move in the anticipated direction.

Investors in Securities which are principal protected may still be subject to loss of some or all of their
investment if the relevant Issuer and BAC are subject to bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings or some
other event occurs which impairs the ability of each to meet its obligations under the Securities. An
investor may also lose some or all of its investment if it seeks to sell the relevant Securities prior to their
scheduled maturity, and the sale price of the Securities in the secondary market is less than the initial
investment or the relevant Securities are subject to certain adjustments in accordance with the terms and
conditions of such Securities that may result in the scheduled amount to be paid or asset(s) to be
delivered upon redemption being reduced to or being valued at an amount less than an investor’s initial
investment.

The Securities may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor in the Securities must determine the suitability of that investment in light of its
own circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:
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(a) have sufficient knowledge and experience to evaluate the Securities, the merits and risks of
investing in the Securities and the information contained or incorporated by reference in this Base
Prospectus or any applicable supplement and all the information contained in the applicable Final
Terms;

ave access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its

b) h t d knowledge of, appropriat lytical tools t luat th text of it
particular financial situation, an investment in the Securities and the impact the Securities will have
on its overall investment portfolio;

(c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Securities, including Securities with amounts payable in one or more currencies, or where the
Settlement Currency or Specified Currency of the Securities is different from the potential
investor’s currency;

(d) have knowledge of and access to appropriate analytical resources to analyse quantitatively the
effect (or value) of any redemption, cap, floor, or other features of the Securities, and the resulting
impact upon the value of the Securities;

(e) wunderstand thoroughly the terms of the Securities and be familiar with any relevant indices and
financial markets; and

(f) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the
applicable risks.

The Securities are complex financial instruments. A potential investor should not invest in Securities
unless it has the expertise (either alone or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how such Securities will
perform under changing conditions, the resulting effects on the value of those Securities and the impact
this investment will have on the potential investor’s overall investment portfolio.

In addition, an investment in Index Linked Securities, Share Linked Securities, Saudi Share Linked
Warrants, Debt Linked Securities, GDR/ADR Linked Securities, FX Linked Securities, Commodity
Linked Securities, Fund Linked Securities, Inflation Linked Securities, Credit Linked Securities or other
Securities linked to other Reference Item(s) (‘“‘Reference Item Linked Securities’’), may entail significant
risks not associated with investments in conventional securities such as debt or equity securities,
including, but not limited to, the risks set out in ““Risks related to the structure of a particular issue of
Securities” set out below.

The Securities are unsecured obligations

The Securities constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the relevant
Issuer and rank equally among themselves and rank equally (subject to exceptions as are from time to
time provided by applicable laws) with all other present and future direct, unsubordinated, unconditional
and unsecured indebtedness or obligations, as applicable, of the relevant Issuer.

The obligations of BAC under the Guarantee, save for such exceptions as may be provided by applicable
laws and regulations or judicial order, rank pari passu with its other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations.

Since BAC is a holding company, the right of BAC, and hence the right of creditors of BAC (including
the Holders), to participate in any distribution of the assets of any subsidiary (including each Issuer) upon
its liquidation or reorganisation or otherwise is necessarily subject to the prior claims of creditors of the
subsidiary, except to the extent that claims of BAC itself as a creditor of the subsidiary may be
recognised. In addition, dividends, loans and advances from certain subsidiaries to BAC are restricted by
net capital requirements under the Exchange Act and under the rules of certain exchanges and other
regulatory bodies.

The yield on the Securities may be less than the yield on a conventional debt security of comparable
maturity

Any yield that an investor may receive on the Securities, which could be negative, may be less than the
return an investor would earn if the investor purchased a conventional debt security with the same
maturity date. As a result, an investment in the Securities may not reflect the full opportunity cost to an
investor when factors that affect the time value of money are considered.
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Movements in the level or price of a Reference Item will affect the performance of the Securities

The level or price of the Reference Item may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate
with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant level
or price of the Reference Item. This may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level or
price of the Reference Item during the life of the Securities is consistent with investors’ expectations. In
general, the earlier the change in the level or price of the Reference Item, the greater the effect on the
yield of the Securities.

Leverage will magnify the effect of changes in the Reference Item

If the formula used to determine any amount payable and/or non-cash consideration deliverable contains
a multiplier or leverage factor, then the percentage change in the value of the Security will be greater
than any positive and/or negative performance of the Reference Item(s). Any Securities which include
such multiplier or leverage factor represent a very speculative and risky form of investment since any
change in the value of the Reference Item(s) carries the risk of a correspondingly higher change in the
value of the Securities.

A postponement of valuation or determination due to a Market Disruption Event and Disrupted Day
may have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities

If the Securities include provisions dealing with the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event or a failure
of an exchange or related exchange to open on a Valuation Date, an Averaging Date or a Pricing Date
and the Calculation Agent determines that a Market Disruption Event or such failure has occurred or
exists on any relevant date, any consequential postponement of the relevant date or any alternative
provisions for valuation provided in the Securities may have an adverse effect on the value of the
Securities or of any amounts payable under the Securities.

The occurrence of a Payment Disruption Event may lead to a delayed and/or reduced payment

If Payment Disruption Event is applicable to a Security, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, then,
in the event that the Calculation Agent determines, in its sole discretion, that an event that (i) prevents,
restricts or delays the relevant Issuer from converting or delivering relevant currencies, (ii) imposes
capital controls, or (iii) implements changes to laws relating to foreign investments (a ‘“‘Payment
Disruption Event”) has occurred or is likely to occur, then either (a) the relevant exercise or payment
date (as applicable) in respect of the Securities or (b) the relevant Issuer’s obligation to make a payment
in respect of such exercise or payment date may be postponed to a date falling five Business Days (or such
other date as may be determined by the Calculation Agent and notified to Holders) after the date on
which the Payment Disruption Event is no longer occurring. No accrued interest will be payable in
respect of any such postponement and no Event of Default in respect of the Securities will result from
such postponement. Partial payments or physical delivery of Shares in lieu of cash settlement of Share
Linked Securities may, in the relevant Issuer’s sole discretion, be made during such period (after
deduction for any expenses). In the event that a Payment Disruption Event is still continuing on the date
which is one year after the last date on which amounts are due under the Securities (or in the case of
Saudi Share Linked Warrants, the earlier of (x) one year after the last date on which amounts are due
under the Securities and (y) four years after the Trade Date) (the ‘“Payment Event Cut-off Date”’), then
(1) such final payment date shall be extended to the Payment Event Cut-off Date and (2) the remaining
amounts payable under the Securities shall be deemed to be zero and the relevant Issuer shall have no
obligations whatsoever under the Securities. Therefore, in a case where Payment Disruption Event is
relevant as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Holder could lose all or part of its investment in
the Securities.

In the event that the relevant Issuer satisfies its obligation to make a cash payment by the delivery of
Shares following the occurrence of a Payment Disruption Event, Holders may be unable to sell such
Shares, or may be unable to sell them at a price equal to the cash payment that would have been payable
but for the occurrence of the Payment Disruption Event.

The occurrence of a CNY Payment Disruption Event may lead to a delayed and/or reduced payment or
payment in another currency

If CNY Payment Disruption Event is applicable to a Security, as specified in the applicable Final Terms,
then, in the event that the Calculation Agent determines, in its sole discretion, that any of the following
events has occurred or is likely to occur: (i) an event that makes it impossible or impractical for the Issuer
to convert any amounts in CNY due in respect of the Securities in the general CNY foreign exchange
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market in the relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s), (ii) an event that makes it impossible or impractical
for the Issuer to deliver CNY between accounts inside the relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s) or from an
account inside the relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s) to an account outside the relevant CNY
Settlement Centre(s), or (iii) the general CNY foreign exchange market in the relevant CNY Settlement
Centre becomes illiquid as a result of which the Issuer cannot obtain sufficient CNY in order to satisfy its
payment obligations (in whole or in part) under the Securities (each, a “CNY Payment Disruption
Event”), then either (a) the relevant exercise or payment date (as applicable) in respect of the Securities,
or (b) the relevant Issuer’s obligation to make a payment in respect of such exercise or payment date may
be postponed to a date falling five Business Days (or such other date as may be determined by the
Calculation Agent and notified to Holders) after the date on which the CNY Payment Disruption Event
is no longer occurring. No accrued interest will be payable in respect of any such postponement and no
Event of Default in respect of the Securities will result from such postponement. In the event that a CNY
Payment Disruption Event is still continuing on the Payment Event Cut-off Date, then (1) such final
payment date shall be extended to the Payment Event Cut-off Date and (2) the remaining amounts
payable under the Securities shall be deemed to be zero and the relevant Issuer shall have no obligations
whatsoever under the Securities. Therefore, in a case where CNY Payment Disruption Event is relevant
as specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Holder could lose all or part of its investment in the
Securities. If “Payment of Equivalent Amount” is applicable to a Security, as specified in the applicable
Final Terms, the relevant Issuer may make payment of the equivalent amount of the relevant Interest
Amount, Fixed Coupon Amount, Final Redemption Amount, Additional Amount, Cash Settlement
Amount or other amount payable under the Securities in another currency as specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

Risks Relating to Securities denominated in CNY

All payments in CNY under the Securities will be made solely by credit or transfer to a CNY account
maintained by the payee with a bank in the CNY Settlement Centre in accordance with the prevailing
rules and regulations and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Securities. The relevant
Issuer shall not be required to make payment by any other means (including in bank notes or by
transfer to a bank account in the People’s Republic of China or anywhere else other than the CNY
Settlement Centre).

There is only limited availability of CNY outside the People’s Republic of China, which may affect the
liquidity of the Securities and the relevant Issuer’s ability to source CNY outside the People’s Republic of
China to fulfil its payment obligations under the Securities.

CNY is not freely convertible at present. The government of the People’s Republic of China continues to
regulate conversion between CNY and foreign currencies despite the significant reduction over the years
by such government of its control over routine foreign exchange transactions under current accounts. The
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) has established a clearing and settlement system pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement on the Clearing of CNY Business between PBOC and Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited. However, the current size of CNY and CNY denominated financial assets in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region is limited, and its growth is subject to many constraints imposed by
the laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of China on foreign exchange. There can be no
assurance that access to CNY funds for the purposes of making payments under the Securities or
generally may remain or will not become restricted.

The value of CNY against foreign currencies fluctuates and is affected by changes in the People’s
Republic of China and international political and economic conditions and by many other factors. As a
result, foreign exchange fluctuations between a purchaser’s home currency and CNY may affect
purchasers who intend to convert gains or losses from the sale or redemption of the Securities into their
home currency. The government of the People’s Republic of China has gradually liberalised the
regulation of interest rates in recent years. Further liberation may increase interest rate volatility.

The relevant Issuer may make certain modifications to the Securities without the consent of the Holders

The Conditions provide that the relevant Agent and the relevant Issuer may, without the consent of
Holders, agree to (i) any modification (subject to certain specific exceptions) of the Securities or the
Agency Agreement which is not prejudicial to the interests of the Holders or (ii) any modification of the
Securities or the Agency Agreement which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or is made to correct
a manifest error or proven error or to comply with mandatory provisions of law.
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At meetings of Holders, the decision of the majority will bind all Holders

The Conditions contain provisions for calling meetings of Holders to consider matters affecting their
interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all Holders, including Holders who
did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting and Holders who voted in a manner contrary to the
majority.

There may be conflicts of interest between the relevant Issuer, its Affiliates and the Holders

The relevant Issuer, BAC and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may engage in activities that
may result in conflicts of interests between their and their respective Affiliates’ or agents’ financial
interests on the one hand and the interests of the Holders on the other hand. The relevant Issuer, BAC
and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may also engage in trading activities (including hedging
activities) related to the Reference Item(s) underlying any Securities and other instruments or derivative
products based on or related to the Reference Item(s) underlying any Securities for their proprietary
accounts or for other accounts under their management. The relevant Issuer, BAC and/or any of BAC’s
Affiliates or agents may also issue other derivative instruments in respect of the Reference Item(s)
underlying Securities. The relevant Issuer, BAC and/or any of BAC’s Affiliates or agents may also act as
underwriter in connection with future offerings of Shares or other securities related to an issue of
Securities or may act as financial adviser to certain companies whose Shares or other securities are
included in a basket of Shares or other securities or which are reference entities, or in a commercial
banking capacity for any such companies. Such activities could present certain conflicts of interest, could
influence the prices of such shares or other securities and could adversely affect the value of such
Securities. The relevant Issuer also may enter into arrangements with Affiliates or agents to hedge market
risks associated with its obligations under the Securities. Any such Affiliate or agent would expect to
make a profit in connection with such arrangements. The relevant Issuer would not seek competitive bids
for such arrangements from unaffiliated parties.

Where the Securities are offered to the public, as the Dealer(s) and any distributors act pursuant to a
mandate granted by the relevant Issuer and they receive fees on the basis of the services performed and
the outcome of the placement of the Securities, pote